St. Thomas sets its heart toward being a Christian home which
welcomes, encourages and affirms All People.

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Stittsville, Ontario
Diocese of Ottawa, The Anglican Church of Canada
Annual Report
For the year ending
December 31, 2014
Vestry Meeting: February 22nd, 2015
Bishop: The Rt. Rev’d Dr. John Chapman
Rector: The Reverend Jane McCaig
Organist: Don Gillen
Churchwardens: Pat McNally ( 831-0968) Robin Tilgner (831-2709)
1

MISSION STATEMENT
St. Thomas sets its heart toward being a Christian home which welcomes, encourages and seeks
to inspire All People.
With God’s help we strive to:
✞ Be a community built on unconditional love and understanding
✞ Nurture our members so they may carry the Light of Christ into the world
✞ Be prepared and strengthened to live our faith in all areas of our lives
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AGENDA - ANNUAL VESTRY SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 22nd , 2015

1.

Opening Prayer

2.

Appointment of Vestry Clerk and Declaration of Membership
(Canon Law c5.02.1)

3.

Rector’s Address

4.

Acceptance of Minutes of 2014 Vestry

5.

Presentation of 2014 Financial Statements

6.

Presentation and Approval of Budget for 2015

7.

Acceptance of 2014 Annual Reports
a. Wardens’ Reports
b. Parish Groups and Organizations

8.

Statistical Report

9.

Business Arising from 2014 Annual Report

10.

Letters of Thanks

11.

Appointments

12.

Nominations Committee Report and Elections

13.

New Business
a.

Possible renewal of Worship space

b. 150 Anniversary planning for St Thomas Church
14.

Adjournment and Closing Prayers
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MINUTES - ANNUAL VESTRY MEETING
FEBRUARY 23rd, 2014
Item

Description

1.

Opening Prayer 11:58 – The Rev Jane McCaig

2.

Appointment of Vestry Clerk, Liz Norris and Declaration of Membership (Canon Law c5.12.1)

3.

Rector’s address and Thank You recognitions were given.

4.

MOTION NO. 1. It is moved that the Agenda for Vestry 2014 be accepted as presented
Moved by Pat McNally
Seconded by Elizabeth Norris
carried
MOTION NO. 2. Acceptance of minutes for 2013 Vestry
(Amendment to Motion No. 13: add the name Michael Whalen to Board of Directors
Moved to accept Mary Passmore
Seconded by Pat Dalphy
Carried
Presentation of Financial Statements presented by Mary Passmore.
St Thomas ended the year with an $8,444 deficit which was $4,065 higher than we budgeted for the
year. The primary reason for this was that our total offerings were lower than expected. Our
incomes were $9,112 less than budgeted and our expenditures were $4,823 less than budgeted.
Fiscal management by Corporation member helped to keep the deficit from being higher.
Offerings of all types represent our highest income source and 84% of our total incomes.
Fundraising incomes now represent our 2nd highest income source with Facilities Cost Recovery
being the 3rd highest. Cost recovery income has been declining over the last few years and
Corporation is preparing a plan to address this opportunity area in 2014.
Diocesan Obligations continue to represent the highest portions of our costs in 2013 or 67% of all
St Thomas expenditure which includes, Parish Fair Share, and Equalized cost of Priestly services
(ECOPS) and Insurance. St Thomas has reached a point where cost reductions will be difficult to
achieve without impacting Ministry programs.
A few key notes: Every project undertaken was 100% funded before being implemented and did
not cause our deficit position. Of $22,689 income received , 12% or our total income went to
support Outreach programs in the Dioceses or for St Thomas specific Outreach projects. Our
financial cash position or liquidity position St Thomas total has reasonable resources to ensure its
commitments and plans can be met. $63,612 in immediately cashable assets held in various Funds:
Grocery Fund and CTF fund.
On the general fund operating side (Utilities, cleaning staff, staff and our ministry programs
expenditures) it is a different story. Four years ago we had at least two months of “liquid cash”
available in our bank to pay for the costs above. After 3 years of declining incomes and deficits we
now have about one month cushion.
St Thomas has no debt. St Thomas incomes have been flattening out over the years and fixed costs
have been increasing.

5.

6. Presentation of 2014 Budget by Robin Tilgner.
Total Offerings will now represent 86% of all incomes received with Fundraising income also
increasing to 9%. Rental incomes will decrease from 5% to 1%. Corporation will develop a plan to
address this. Overall Total income will decrease by $2,343 in 2014.
Since 2008 St Thomas offerings have flattened out and declined somewhat in recent years. One
scenario is to increase the awareness that St Thomas exists. Corporation created a new ministry in
2013. The Communications Ministry headed by Pat McNally and this team has been very active in
trying to a raise the awareness of St Thomas in our community. The Diocese executive pointed out to
Corporation that the average annual offering from identifiable givers in 2013 was $1,209 across all
parishes. Comparably, St Thomas had an average annual offering of $1,027. This average fell $2.00
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MINUTES - ANNUAL VESTRY MEETING – Continued
from 2012 and is $182 less than the Diocesan average. Corporation and Parish Council member
keep costs in check because 95% of all St Thomas costs are relatively fixed in nature. After years of
belt-tightening there are only two ways to further reduce costs. First, we could eliminate a service
paid for or find a reasonable alternative. An example would be to remove our cleaning contracts or
snow removal. Who in our parish could take these responsibilities on to reduce costs? A Second way
is to remove a Ministry such as Outreach or God’s Garden. This goes against our core mandate and
wishes. The 2014 budget includes $184,249 in Total Expenditure of which 68% is for Diocesan
commitments and 19% is to pay staff. Note that Parish Outreach and Refugee ministry are budgeted
at $0 and funds will have to be fund-raised for these ministries in 2014.
The 2014 Budget proposed reflects a budgeted deficit of $1,989 down from the budgeted
deficit of 2013 of $4,379. This Budget, as in 2013, again includes a $2,500 financial grant
from the Diocese in 2014 to help us offset our deficit position.
Our Offerings will be $8,279 higher than received in 2013 and this increase is based on the increases
offered from our Stewardship program.
Our fundraising income should increase on the assumption that more grocery certificates will be sold
in 2014. We like to thank the member of this years Budget committee, William Passmore, John
Smith, Bob McCaig and Robin Tilgner.
Some questions from the floor. What is the ECOP formula? Will our Fair share be going up?
The ECOPS formula is being reviewed. All churches are facing the same issues.
MOTION NO. 3 It is moved that the budget for St Thomas Church, Stittsville 2014 be approved as
presented.
Moved by Mary Passmore
2nd by Robin Tilgner
Carried
7.

8.

9.

10.
11.
12.

13

Acceptance of 2013 Annual Reports.
a. Warden’s Reports
MOTION NO. 4. Moved by Karen Ann McKinna 2nd by William Passmore Carried
b. Parish Groups and Organizations
MOTION NO. 5. Moved by John Grahame
2nd by Susan Grahame
Carried
Statistical Report
Numbers are down for various reasons. From Sept to Dec the average attendance was 86 and from
January to Easter the average goes down to 62. Lenten season seems to be less popular. Good Friday
is supposed to be the most important day.
MOTION NO. 6 Moved to approve the Statistical Report
Moved by Pat Dalphy
2nd Nona Steadman
Carried
Business Arising from 2013. There was a request to investigate the possibility to purchase the
property next door to the church. The Diocese did review it with us and they will not purchase the
land. This issue has been examined thoroughly and has been set to rest at our Parish Council
Meeting.
Letters of Thanks were given in the Rector’s address.
Appointments as stated on page 13 of Vestry report; Liz Hall is Deputy Warden
Any nominations from the Floor. The Long Range planning Coordinator position has not been filled.
MOTION NO. 7 moved to approve the Nominations report.
Moved by Barbara Bottriell
2nd by Audrey Robinson
Carried
Other Business:
Robin Tilgner addressed our position on Outreach this year. 50% of our fair share that goes to the
Diocese also goes to support their missions, The Well, Centre 454, St Lukes’s Lunch table and
Pastoral care. St Thomas’s personal choices may not be available to us with the budget this year but
we are doing outreach. We can do fundraising for an outreach project of our choice. Some like the
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MINUTES - ANNUAL VESTRY MEETING – Continued
idea of personal fundraising projects so everyone gets involved but others would like to support
outreach from our budget. To help support our Outreach the following motion was tabled.
MOTION NO. 8 It is moved that $1000 of GIFT Fund be used to supplement the Outreach
fundraising for this year 2014.
Carried
Moved by Pat Dalphy
2nd by Pat McNally
13. 1. Real Estate Working group. A group is to be formed to work on renting out our facilities is
required. Some guidelines need to be developed and we need to find more renters.
MOTION NO. 9. It is move that a real estate working group be formed to take over the rental of
church space and contracts relation to rental space.
Carried
Moved by Rev Jane McCaig
2nd by William Passmore
2. Open Table Desire to have Church kitchen renovated presented by Pat Dalphy.
Our Open Table is a real ongoing Outreach for St Thomas. The Open table group would like to see
the funds given them for Kitchen renovations to enhance our kitchen operations and make the work
space less crowded. The $10,000 GIC won’t be enough but we could look at other sources of income
such as GIFT and Fundraising. The renovations need to be professionally planned and an estimate
will have to be looked at. The GIC can be put back temporarily until further investigations.
MOTION NO. 10. It is moved that Open Table ask for a working group to be set up to assess the
design and investigate all costs and suggested fundraising then report back to Corporation and Parish
Council.
Carried
Moved by Pat McNally
2nd by Pat Dalphy
3. Music at St Thomas. Permission from Vestry to look into paid Choir director- Funding form
GIFT and application for diocesan Gift grant
MOTION NO. 11 It is moved that we have permission to look into procuring a Choir Director.
Carried
Moved by Rev Jane McCaig
2nd by Bonnie McNally
4. 150th Anniversary of Church presented by William Passmore
In 2015 it is our Silver Jubilee of 25 years in the New Church and in 2016 St Thomas Church
celebrates its 150th Anniversary. We could invite special guests for our celebrations. Perhaps
invite the primate Fred Hiltz. William would like to form a planning group to develop strategies
and activities to celebration and honour these two dates. December 2015 and May 2016. Does
anyone have some ideas of what activities or projects we would like?
5. Re-visioning the worship space for future use - presented by Robin Tilgner.
Robin would like to start an open dialogue on how our worship space could be enhanced.
She showed some pictures of two churches that re-organized their worship space to give us some
ideas. They removed the old carpet and put flooring down which gave them a fresh clean look,
and they replaced the hard pews with comfortable chairs. These are some ideas of what can be
done. More will follow.
MOTION NO. 12 . It is moved that Patrick McNally and Bonnie McNally be endorsed to be lay readers
for the Parish of ST Thomas, Stittsville.
Carried
Moved by Rev. Jane McCaig
2nd by Mary Passmore
MOTION NO. 13. It is moved that Bert Smith, Brad Faulkner, Michael Whalen, Gwelda O’Shaughnessy,
Art Read, and Hugh Sparks are serving in the capacity of the Cemetery Board in 2014-2015.
Carried
Moved by Gwelda O’Shaughnessy
2nd by Bev Coote
Rev Jane asked that the Youth going to Nicaragua do a journal about the trip. A sendoff will be on
Sunday.
Closing Prayer by Rev Jane. 2:10 p.m.
MOTION NO. 14 To adjourn moved by Bonnie McNally.
Minutes taken by E. Norris
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WARDENS’ REPORTS
Rector’s Warden – Report to Vestry 2015
It is always exciting to be part of something special. That sums up my first year as Rector’s
Warden. This statement is made possible by what I have seen and heard at St. Thomas and in the
community. It should come as no surprise that a church community, since 1866 living out the
Christian life, has had such an effect on anyone who comes to worship God, to take part in the
songs, prayers and fellowship – to give of themselves and to receive in abundance.
It has been a distinct privilege to serve, to learn from, and to work with Rev. Jane, Canon
Michael and Pastor Sharron this past year. Holy Week was especially significant to me as I
previously never had the opportunity to take part in all of the services during that liturgical
season.
In the spiritual life of St. Thomas, many ‘angels’, visible and invisible, are hard at work. There is
the pastoral care team, the prayer support chain, facilities group, funeral group, Bible study at
church and in the community, Alpha sessions, and perhaps most noticeable is the growing
fellowship experienced during coffee time following the service.
In tandem with duties as one of the wardens, I was also privileged during this term to become
more involved with the fiduciary side of parish life. In particular I appreciate the leadership
shown by Bob McCaig in his roles as Bookkeeper and Facilities Chair. I enjoyed working with
my fellow Warden, Robin Tilgner and wish to sincerely thank her for her wisdom and help. Liz
Norris, our Office Administrator has continually amazed me with her depth of knowledge in all
matters St. Thomas.
It was and is hard to see parishioners depart. It is challenging to deal with a deficit budget. It is
however even more encouraging to see new faces on Sunday morning, to be a part of a vibrant
church family, and to witness the joy of the children as they learn of their life in Christ.
Most importantly, I count it a rare privilege to assist Rev. Jane and to be part of, through her life
and words, the effect of the Holy Spirit on our lives and those we love.
Respectfully submitted,
Pat McNally

WARDENS’ REPORT
People’s Warden 2014

The position of People’s Warden carries rewards, challenges, moments of grace and can
sometimes be unpredictable, but there are supportive people to assist and share in the work.
Those who lead committees, who set plans in place and the volunteers who carry out many tasks
provide a secure feeling that the work of the church is going forward. We’ve been supported as
well by the many quiet donors who are regular givers and are keeping our financial heads above
water. I am thankful for all these, and the opportunity I have had to serve this parish - but a
special blessing for those people who with a quiet word, a prayer or a friendly shoulder to lean
on have kept the light of faith burning for me in some of the difficult times.
The list of people to thank is very long, so I refer you to last year’s Vestry report where the same
people are listed who have continued in their vital and life-giving work here at St. Thomas. I
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WARDENS’ REPORT

Cont’d

must add to the list however, my husband Immo, who has stepped in to carry out many tasks that
I could not, and always manages to find even more things around St. Thomas that need attention!
Many thanks to my fellow warden Pat McNally who did the heavy lifting while I dealt with a
minor but incapacitating injury over the last few months; to Bonnie McNally who presented the
2014 Bazaar to the public in fine style, and always to Liz Norris who has kept me on track with
patience and good humour. Please keep the door open and the coffee on, Liz!
Friends have asked what comes next – as we’re meant to be doing – not being – in today’s
world! I’m very fond of the writer, theologian and Episcopal priest, Barbara Brown Taylor,
finding in her books a practical spirituality and a sure guide to dealing with life. I was not then
surprised to find in her book ‘An Altar in the World’ a chapter on ‘The Practice of Getting Lost’
just when I was wrestling with the feelings one has when moving away from a position one will
not fill again. She says, “The point is to admit you’re lost, and maybe even to allow that you are
in no hurry to be found.” The French word is ‘flaneur’ – one who goes for a walk with no
particular destination in mind, or one who leaves the established path. I’m going to concentrate
on being a ‘spiritual’ flaneur – as Taylor says “letting it (the journey) bring you to your knees to
show you what is real, including who you really are, who other people are, and how near God
can be when you’ve lost your way.” And – I would add – the chance and time to encounter
others. The season of Lent is approaching – an excellent time to be in the wilderness!
Finally, as we approach the 150th anniversary of the community of St. Thomas, I pray that
serious questions about the work and life of this church are asked. Will we maintain the status
quo or find out what it truly means to be a missional church? Can we step outside the boundaries
we have set around our music, liturgy and church space? Can we truly practice radical
Christianity in this parish? I think it’s time we found out!
Blessings,
Robin Tilgner
People’s Warden
DEPUTY WARDENS’ REPORT
Reflections on 2014 at St Thomas
I am the granddaughter of an Anglican Priest so I grew up with some awareness of some of the behind the
scenes responsibilities and challenges faced by our Clergy. Taking on the role of Deputy Warden has
given me another glimpse of the numerous day to day decisions that help the church run smoothly. It has
highlighted for me how much I struggle to make those kinds of decisions and take on those tasks within
my own home, and I have found it challenging to participate in the life of the church this way on behalf of
others. I have been grateful for the much greater responsibility and availability shown by Jane, Robin,
and Pat. There is a member of our Parish who has said to me several times this year “you’re a worker”. I
believe we are all called to do the work of the church in the world, and we each have unique gifts to bring
to our local parish. I am grateful for the opportunity to serve in this way another year.
Respectfully submitted,
Liz Hall - Deputy Warden
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PARISH COUNCIL REPORT
Parish Council Report to Annual Vestry 2015
St. Thomas Parish Council for the current term was comprised of 17 members, including those
elected to specific posts, four members-at-large, and appointments by the Rector. The group met
monthly, except for July and August.
Various committees also met throughout the year to plan and carry out activities which form an
essential part of parish life. These include the Team 150 Group, Parish Outreach, Budget
Committee, Open Table and the Communications Committee.
It takes many skilled hands and hearts to perform the tasks that bring the fabric of this church to
life. Such talented servants work unseen and often unsung as well. Every facet in the operation of
the church is represented by a dedicated group of volunteers, who work alongside Parish Council
to provide for a welcoming, pleasant, clean and safe place in which to worship.
Numerous special events were enthusiastically supported during the year. These included Shrove
Tuesday pancakes, plant sales, a fish fry dinner, The Watoto Children’s’ Choir, a road rally
fundraiser, the Snowflake Bazaar, a performance by the Stairwell Carollers, and the hosting by
parish council of the January Open Table community dinner.
Beyond the parish itself, there were two missions to Nicaragua, participation at Diocesan Synod
and work on the imminent renaissance of deanery councils in the Diocese.
Members of council were active participants in deanery and Diocesan-wide sessions as part of
the Embracing God’s Future initiative. At Synod in the fall, the results of input from lay and
clergy were reviewed and approved for implementation across the Diocese.
I wish to extend heartfelt thanks to the entire council for their boundless energy and enthusiasm.
Respectfully submitted,
Pat McNally – Chair
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2015 NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT
Proposed Parish Council Candidates for 2015
Bishop's Appointment: * The Reverend Jane McCaig
* denotes member of Parish Council
Rector's Appointments:

* Rector's Warden – Pat McNally
* Bookkeeper - Bob McCaig
* Recording Clerk - Elizabeth Norris
Financial Reviewers - John Smith and Lyle Stevenson
* Church School – Merilee Clarke
Nursery Coordinator – Judy McCorkell

Election:
* People's Warden * Deputy Warden -

Gillan Mattock
Liz Hall

* Members of Synod - Bonnie McNally (year2)
Ryan Dallaway (year2)
Pat McNally (year 1)
* Synod Alternate – Robin Tilgner
* Outreach – Sylvi Dawes
* Fundraising and Fellowship – Nicole Dallaway
* Stewardship – Bob Lomas
* Facilities - Bob McCaig
* Embracing God’s Future, formerly Long Range Planning
* Members at large -

# 1 Shirley Chennette
# 2 William Passmore
#3 Natalie Passmore
#4 Robin Tilgner

Nomination Report respectfully submitted by:
Robin Tilgner and Pat McNally

12

STATISTICAL REPORT
Service Information

Year 2012

2013

2014

Total Sunday Attendance:

5,721

5120

4933

Average Sunday Attendance:

108

98

95

Average Sunday Attendance: 8:30 am Service:

35

29

30

10:30 am Service:

88

81

79

Average Summer Sunday Attendance:

49

52

58

Total Number of Worshippers:

7416

6848

6057

Total Number of Communicants:

6044

5553

5736

Total Number of Eucharistic Celebrations:

116

124

119

Home Communion/Anointing

75

49

36

Seniors Resident Services:

16

24

20

Morning Prayer Services:

2

2

7

Evening Prayer Services:

3

4

2

Confirmation Services:

1

0

0

Marriages:

0

1

0

Funerals/Memorial Services in the Church

2

6

5

at Graveside

5

2

1

Baptisms:

11

2

14

Ash Wednesday

29

35

38

Maundy Thursday

41

35

37

Ecumenical Liturgy

100

50

90

Passion Liturgy

51

35

40

Christmas Service Attendance:

388

413

319

Cemetery Service:

50

52

65

Funerals/Memorial Services in Funeral Home or

Attendance at Special Services:
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LITURGICAL SUPPORT GROUPS
Over the year our Sunday liturgies flow on seamlessly. From the time people enter the door of our church
they are welcomed with a friendly face into the Church. Sides Persons hand out bulletins and quietly
count the number of people who have come to worship. The reading of scripture and the offering of
prayers are done with confidence and grace. Youth and adults serve at the altar.
Sunday morning does not take place in isolation. Many hands are required to do liturgy well. I thank all
the folks who are involved in the worship team.
We have been blessed with the presence of our Honorary Assistants, Canon Michael McKinley, and the
Reverend Sharron Reykdal-Bradley, and with our four licensed Lay Readers, Robin Tilgner, William
Passmore, Bonnie McNally and Pat McNally. Thank you all for sharing your gifts of leadership in the
worship community.
Once again I thank God for the gift of Liz Norris. She diligently prepares the rosters for both services. It
takes great organizational skills and patience to accomplish this.
This year after many years as a sides person, reader and leader of the prayers of the people, Ian Swann has
taken a well-deserved retirement. This year, we also lost our cheerful friend Dick Schumacher. Dick
always had a welcoming smile and a kind word to those he greeted. He is missed.
If you are interested in being a part of the Liturgical Support Team please speak with me.
Our community has been blessed with youth who assist at the Lord’s Table. I have found great joy in
working with our youth in this capacity. This year Elysse Chennette has stepped down as she pursues her
post-secondary education. We welcomed to the fold, Greg Chennette, Darcy and Neave Watson-Laird.
Respectfully submitted,
The Rev. Jane McCaig

Youth Servers for 2015 are:
Donny Chennette

Brooke Sutherland

Darcie Watson-Laird

Neave Watson-Laird

Appointed as Lay Communion Assistants at St. Thomas, Stittsville for 2015:
Merilee Clarke
Shirley Chennette
Don Cooper
Bob Lomas
Arlene Simonovitch

John Bottriell
John Clarke
Joan Cooper
Susan Lomas
Harry Mercer

Sylvi Dawes
Liz Norris
Robin Tilgner
Bonnie McNally
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Tanya Drew
William Passmore
Barbara Cordukes
Pat McNally

LITURGICAL SUPPORT GROUPS - ALTAR GUILD
ALTAR GUILD REPORT – 2014
As always, the Altar Guild had another busy year with decorating for all special occasions and
setting up for Sunday services. We had some extra expenses this year as two chalices needed
repair and a new Burse was purchased, and of course our usual supplies of wine, wafers and
various cleaning supplies were also purchased throughout the year.
Four members attended the Altar Guild AGM at the Church of the Epiphany on Ogilvie Road
where they heard an inspiring talk from the Rev. Canon Pat Johnston on the installation of the inground, full immersion, Baptismal Font at the Church of the Epiphany where she was the
incumbent at that time.
Again, special thanks to Doreen Bell and her helpers for all their work.
This year the format for setting up the Altar was changed and we now have 3 teams of 4 people
in each. I think this is working well and at our May meeting we will discuss if we are going to
continue in this way.
Respectfully submitted,

Marlyn Powell
President
ALTAR GUILD REPORT – 2014
St. Thomas Altar Guild
Supply Fund

January 1 to December 31, 2014

Revenue
From General Fund (April 13th )

300.00

Bottles of Port
Liturgical (wafers)

193.30
102.92

HST Rebate
Donation from Rikki Cameron

174.36
200.00

James M. McLean
Other

465.00
71.40

Total
Opening Balance
Net loss
Closing Balance

Expenses

$ 674.36

Total

995.79
-158.26
837.53
15

832.62

ALTAR GUILD - continued

Flower Fund

January 1 to December 31, 2014
Expenses

Revenue

Flower Donations

$ 1645.00

Talismans Flowers

$1268.31

Brown’s Y.I.G.

$ 512.56

James m. McLean (palms )

39.21
Total

Opening Balance
Net Loss

$1820.08

$ 1867.16
- 175.08

Closing Balance

$ 1692.08

Submitted by Arlene Simonovich – Treasurer

LITURGICAL SUPPORT GROUPS - 10:30 SIDES PEOPLE
We have a very dedicated team of ladies and men that continue to serve every Sunday morning.
Two people are always on duty, greeting and handing out bulletins, taking up collection and
ushering during communion. We tidy up the church after the service by putting away the prayer
books and picking up anything left in the pews.
We have had a lot of changes to our team since last report and we thank those people who have
joined the team and a big thanks to those that worked with us over the past years for their service
and dedication.
Our present team consists of:
John Bottriell; Diane Clement; Sue Grahame; Helen Greatrex; Ross Kennedy; Bob and Sue
Lomas; Olive McKinley; Pat McNally; Marlyn Powell; Michael Smith and Brooke Sullivan.
It is certainly a pleasure for me to prepare the schedule and work alongside such a dedicated
group.
Respectfully submitted Diane Clement, 10:30 am Sides person Co-ordinator.
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MUSIC MINISTRIES REPORTS – Senior Choir Report

The choir had a challenging year for 2014.
I would like to thank Mary Passmore and the members of Cornerstone and Naomi WatsonLaird for their Co-operation and assistance that exists between the Music Groups.
I would like to thank the Congregation and Rev. Jane McCaig for their strong support of the
Music Program.
The Members of the Choir are: Barb Bottriell, Beth Barden, Sylvia Stephens, Linda Noble,
Susan Chapman, Naomi Watson Laird, Jodi Sullivan and Don Gillen
Thank you to members of Cornerstone who joined the Choir for the fall 2014.
The members of Cornerstone that joined the choir are: Mary Passmore, Sylvi Dawes, Liz
Norris, Gary Graham, Luc Faucon, These extra voices make a big difference in the Choir's
success and abilities.
I would like to invite members of the Congregation, to consider trying out either the Choir or
Cornerstone. Please contact Mary Passmore or Donald Gillen for further information.
Choir practices on Monday evenings and Cornerstone on Wednesday Evenings.
Once again thank you to everyone.
Respectfully submitted,
Donald Gillen, - Organist and Choirmaster

MUSIC MINISTRIES REPORTS – Cornerstone Report
The ministry of this music group continues at St. Thomas. We would like to thank those from
our Church family who support us in prayer.
Changes occurred in September 2014 after much prayer, heart searching, discussions with one
another, Choir and Rev. Jane.
As of now, we sing once a month on the 4th Sunday – this is a “contemporary” Service at
10.30am.
We will continue to lead musically, to introduce newer songs (sometimes stretching us all a bit!),
as well as singing older favourites. We encourage you all to join in with us and praise God
together.
We have said goodbye to Donny Chennette and Tyler Dow this year. Tyler has gone off to
College, and Donny is busy at High School with studies, sports and lots of music. It was great
having you both – we miss you. All God’s best in your studies.
We continue happily alongside the Choir, helping each other out as and when we can.
We always welcome new people. Bring your voice, instrument, or just a love of contemporary
praise music – it is fun and uplifting – come join us!
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MUSIC MINISTRIES REPORTS – Cornerstone Report con’t
Thank you to my fellow Cornerstones for sharing your gifts and talents, and for your love,
faithfulness, commitment and support.
Thank you to Don Gillen and Choir members for your support.
Thank you to Rev. Jane and all at St. Thomas for your encouragement.
Did you know ……. Daily encouragement can be found on your radio – 99.1FM on the dial –
Ottawa’s Christian music station …
Have a listen!
Respectfully submitted
Mary Passmore for CORNERSTONE
Pierre and Mary Anne Reinhard
Liz Norris
Sylvi Dawes
Janice Gervais
Luc Faucon
Gary Graham
“The sun comes up it’s a new day dawning, it’s time to sing your song again.
Whatever may pass and whatever lies before me,
Let me be singing when the evening comes.”
From “10,000 Reasons (Bless the Lord)” by Jonas Myrin, Matt Redman.
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EDUCATIONAL REPORT – St Thomas Church School
God's Garden Vestry Report 2014
This year’s pageant was deemed by some to be the best one in years. Naomi Watson Laird
wrote and directed the music for "What's It All About Anyway.' while Merilee Clarke assisted by
Dave Dallaway directed the 24 children, adults, youth and a baby girl, Sarah Sherring as Jesus.
This year the pageant was performed the Sunday before Christmas.
God's Garden is still looking for more teachers with the goal of one Sunday per month for each
teacher. All it takes is 1\2 hour preparation at home and 20 mins class time. Teens are more than
welcome to join us.
We encourage all of the children belonging to St. Thomas to attend on a regular basis so that
their faith can be nurtured in a warm community environment. Friends are always welcome to
join us as well.
Family Faith Time is just that - time for the family to share their faith together with other
families in fun lectionary based activities. Join us at 10:00 every Sunday morning for 20 mins or
so. You will be glad you did.
Thanks to all of our committed teachers, Susan, Diane, Heather, Gillian, Hannah, William,
Penny, and Bonnie. Also to Lorna and Gary for the bulletin announcement board and pew
folders.
I'll end with the words of a verse from one of my favourite old children's hymns; It speaks of the
interaction of child and teacher.
Tell me the stories of Jesus, I long to hear.
Things I would ask Him to tell me, if he were here.
Scenes by the way side, Tales of the sea.
Stories of Jesus tell them to me.
Merilee Clarke

EDUCATIONAL REPORT – St Thomas Nursery
St Thomas Nursery Report for 2014
The Nursery at St Thomas has been a busy happy place at the 10:30 service on Sundays. We’ve
had quite a few lovely little ones playing there most Sundays.
Thank you to our volunteers who so generously organize their schedules to help out: Emma
Passmore, Michelle Harding, Pat Dalphy, and Mary Attwell.
Several of our teens have also helped out and we’re always delighted to have them.
We welcome any new babies or small children.
Respectfully Submitted
Judy McCorkell
Nursery Coordinator.
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EDUCATIONAL REPORT – St Thomas Youth Group “Jumpin Spirits”
St. Thomas Anglican Church 2014 Youth Group Report
Jumpin’ Spirits Youth Group was active this year. In March, several youth and adult members of
St. Thomas, including Reverend Jane, went to Nicaragua with SchoolBox. They spent over a
week immersing themselves in the culture of Nicaragua. They assisted with the construction of a
school in Los Jardines de Apoyo where the children and families of the area warmly and
enthusiastically welcomed them. They also were greatly appreciated by the workers and staff of
SchoolBox for the help in building the school. The group stayed in a hotel in downtown
Granada. During the day, they would go to the build site and after the day’s work, played games
with the children and then would return to the hotel and enjoy an evening dinner at a local
restaurant. It was a most rewarding and educational trip for all. It was so successful that many
of the youth have returned or are planning a trip back in 2015. Up for discussion is a possible
trip in 2016 for the present youth group and others.
Throughout the year, the youth assisted with many of the special events of the Church including
Pancake Breakfast, Parish Picnic, the annual Church clean up, and the Christmas Pageant. They
continued to be visible in the Church by assisting at Sunday services as servers, helpers with
Church school and nursery or participating in the Church Choir, while others continued to assist
at the monthly Open Table suppers. The youth group also hosted a few coffee hours after the
10:30 a.m. Church service.
This past year has also seen some changes. Several youth graduating from high school and/or
attending schools outside the area moved on. We give thanks for their help and look forward to
seeing them when they come for a visit. In September, we made room for a few youth moving
up from the God’s Garden programme. We lost Leah Thomas as a Leader in September and
thank her for all the years of service and hard work in supporting the youth group and their
activities, especially with the trip to Nicaragua. We welcome Jodi Sullivan to the leadership role
of Jumpin’ Spirits and look forward to her involvement and support of the youth group.
We continue to thank and appreciate the support of Parish Council, Corporation and the
Congregation of St. Thomas.
Susan Dow
Jodi Sullivan
Shirley Chennette
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EDUCATIONAL REPORT – REPORT ON EDUCATION FOR MINISTRY (EFM)
In September we started the Anglican/Episcopalian Theological Education Program called
EDUCATION FOR MINISTRY (EFM). This is a 4 year program consisting of Old Testament
(year1), New Testament (year 2), Church History (year 3) and Theology and Ethics (year4).
Throughout the year we explore our personal faith history (spiritual autobiography), we explore
our personal ministry and we learn and practice Theological Reflection. The course is aimed at
lay Christians to assist them in developing their baptismal ministry.
7 students are enrolled (3 from St Thomas, 3 from St Paul’s, Kanata and one from Stittsville
United. If you would like to know more please talk to Rev Jane or myself or look at the website
www.efmcanada.ca.
Respectfully submitted
William Passmore

EDUCATIONAL REPORT – Home Bible Study
Report from the St Thomas Church Home Based Bible Study
St Thomas Anglican Church has a number of parishioners who enjoy a Home Based
Bible Study, meeting once a week, for periods of 8 or 10 or 12 weeks at the home of a member of
the group. The length of the study depends on other happenings taking place at St Thomas,
and/or the study book chosen. When a study is held at the church, such as during Lent or Advent,
..... the home study is held on a different evening from the church study, and some home study
members attend both studies. We usually meet between mid-September to the first week in
December, and from mid-January to early May, breaking for the summer months.
We have studied (in the past 3 years)
The Book of Daniel, The Sermon on The Mount,
Paul's Letter to the Romans, & Abiding in Christ - passages from the Gospel of John; at this
time we are studying The Book of Acts. We choose the book to study by looking at 3 or 4
books and the group selects the one they would like to use. It is quite remarkable that the authors
of the books are able to present questions that really evoke very interesting discussion,
sometimes animated, sometimes quiet; there is always something to learn! The study books
have very interesting comments at the beginning of the book, encouraging the group how the
study should be conducted & points of interest at the end of the book which help to answer some
questions that arise. Listening to other people's knowledge is very beneficial & gives meaning
to the evening. It is best to read the chosen Bible passage(s) before the evening, though we
read it through at the beginning of the study; we also include reading the passage(s) from various
bibles, to understand the words and meaning of the messages. We take turns around the table to
read the passages (but you can pass), the group is understanding of all aspects. At the end of the
evening a leader is requested for the next week, however, if a person is not comfortable being a
leader, that is accepted by the group. The leader presents the study questions, keeps an eye on
the time frame, reads the opening introduction and brings the meeting to a close. We enjoy a
small snack, and prayer is said at the opening and closing of the evening. Though often up to 16
people sign up to attend the average number attending each week is 10 – 12 as we all have
different schedules!
We are so fortunate that in a world where so many are persecuted for their beliefs, we can
worship and learn so freely in a quiet place & also express our love of God, & our Lord Jesus
Christ & the Holy Spirit!
Everyone is warmly welcomed!
Respectfully submitted - Lorna Graham
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUPS – 150th ANNIVERSARY TEAM REPORT
During 2014 we have developed a plan for our celebrations which will run from December 6,
2015 at which we will celebrate both the Confirmation of young people and adults and the 25th
anniversary of our new building, until October 29 2016 when we will celebrate the 150th
anniversary of the founding of St Thomas’s. These plans have been built with input from the
team and 31 parishioners who kindly took the time to respond to the survey.
Here are the plans:
6 December 2015
Celebration of Confirmation of young people and adults and the 25th
anniversary of our new building. Bishop John will be with us. There
will be a pot luck lunch and reception after the service.
December 2015 to
Concert Series. There will be between 1 and 4 concerts during this time
September 2016
to celebrate Christmas and different genres of Christian music.
Late winter/spring
Celebration of our Irish Heritage: Probably a “pub” night with a quiz.
2016, or Sept 2016
Details still fluid (in more ways than one!)
Pentecost 2016
Children's festival/event
Spring 2016
Youth festival/event
Either March Break
Mission Trip to Central America; March break is already booked by
2016 or end of school another group for March 2016. The choice appears to be Schoolbox in
in late June 2016
June, Habitat for Humanity or another event in March break.
Late Spring 2016
June , Memorial
service
Late July/August
2016
28 October 2016

29 October 2016

Ecumenical Praise & Worship event
High Tea/ Victorian tea, at St Thomas’s cemetery, Stanley’s Corners
Pilgrimage to Kingston by car with treasure hunt: This would probably
be a 2 day trip with one night in Kingston.
150th Homecoming Dinner . This will be a catered event held at a local
golf club/banqueting hall. The hope is that many past parishioners will
join us for this event. The Primate has been invited!
150th service with the Primate Celebrating ; followed by a reception in
the Hall.

Other Actions include:
1) The development of a booklet describing the history of St Thomas. This being done by
Barbara Bottriell.
2) Collecting photographs depicting the history pictorially. This is NOT going well. We need
your help!
3) There will be special golf shirts and T shirts made available for sale. It will contain a new St
Thomas emblem. It will contain the motto; “Doubt no more”. We hope to present the proposed
design soon. There will also be mugs for sale to commemorate the event. We plan to have these
ready on or before the 2015 snowflake bazaar.
Below is a table summarizing the responses to date. The response in terms of leading and
assisting is encouraging.
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUPS – 150th ANNIVERSARY TEAM REPORT
PROGRAM EVENT

GOOD
IDEA

INTERESTED IN
ATTENDING

WILLING TO
HELP

LEADER

Reception after the 25th
anniversary of new church
(Dec 6, 2015)
150 th Homecoming Dinner 24
Oct 2016
Special Adult education
event/program with speakers
Concert Program
Mission Trip to Central
America
Pilgrimage to Kingston by car
with treasure hunt
Ecumenical Praise & Worship
event,
Reception after 150th
service(Sun 25 Oct)
Children's festival/event
Youth festival/event
Celebration of our Irish
Heritage

26

21

13

yes

28

22

13

yes

14

8

6

yes

18
10

16
10

9
2

yes
yes

14

12

1

not yet

22

19

10

yes

27

24

12

yes

16
18
15

4 adults
4 adults, 5 Youth
12

5
3
3

co-leader only
yes
yes

TOTAL

31

Overall the team has been disappointed with the response by the parish to the questionnaire. We
need your input and support………..or are we putting too much effort into the wrong initiative?
Finally I would like to thank the team for their hard work and commitment. They are Barbara
Bottriell, Barbara Cordukes, Sharron Rykdal-Bradley, Susan Lomas, Rev Jane, Robin Tilgner.
Respectfully submitted
William Passmore
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUPS – Communications Committee
The Committee completed its first full year of activity in 2014, having come to life in May of
2013. During the year, we met 9 times, usually on a Wednesday morning in the Council Room.
In addition, some members of the committee met to assist in publishing the quarterly edition of
the People’s Pulpit, as well as to sit in on the 150th Anniversary committee meetings.
Committee Members in 2014:
Robin Tilgner People’s Warden
Gary Graham Webmaster
John Clarke Head of parish fundraising activities
Rikki Cameron
Editor – People’s Pulpit
John Eastwood Community Liaison
Pat McNally Chair – Parish Council Chair
Rev. Jane McCaig
Member ex-officio and Publisher – People’s Pulpit
Among its activities for 2014, members of the committee provided regular reports of internet
traffic on the St. Thomas website, Facebook updates, the parish e-mail list, helped with publicity
for popular events including the performance in November by the Stairwell Carollers. The
committee also ensures the publishing of the monthly church page advertisement with EMC
Metroland in the Stittsville News, to highlight Open Table dinners and other special functions at
St. Thomas.
In its core function as editorial board for the People’s Pulpit, the committee invites the
contribution of any group or individual who has news of an event they would like to share. This
official publication presently is in search of an editor, as Rikki Cameron will soon be leaving the
Ottawa area. Part of the mandate of the committee also includes acting as a clearing house for
events, preparing posters and helping with tickets.
As we look ahead to 2015 and beyond, we invite your participation in this vital and fun part of
life at St. Thomas.
Respectfully submitted,
Pat McNally – Communications Committee
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUPS - OUTREACH COMMITTEE REPORT
Although the Outreach Committee did not have an official budget in 2014, we were granted
$1000 from the GIFT program. At March break our youth group ventured off to Nicaragua on a
mission trip to help build a school. Members of St Thomas supported this trip financially by
purchasing cookies, garage sale, quiz night at the Glen pub (very successful) and also donations
for their bottle drives. Then in May we hosted the Watoto Children’s Choir to allow them to raise
money for their villages for orphaned children in Uganda. Thanks to everyone that volunteered
their time to help set up/take down their equipment that day. We fed the choir lunch, snacks and
dinner before the performance and watched as the children transformed from regular kids to
amazing dancers and singers that night. In October of last year St Thomas sponsored the Ride for
Refuge bike race which raised close to $600 for the Kanata/Stittsville Refugee Committee. We
joined with Glencairn United Church’s bike team for this event, but perhaps this year we could
have our own St. Thomas team and choose our own charity. Thanks to Robin Tilgner for alerting
us to that opportunity. In November the Outreach team consisting of Barbara Bottriell, Gert
Brown, Sylvi Dawes, Tanya Drew and Robin Tilgner (absent due to illness) met to distribute our
remaining funds for the year. We gave $270 to our local snowsuit fund. Globally we gave Ryan’s
Well $265 as well as supporting Medecins Sans Frontiers in the amount of $265 specifically
earmarked for the Ebola crisis for a total of $800. There were miscellaneous costs totaling
$183.85 associated with the Watoto Children’s choir leaving a balance of $16.15 to date. When
the Outreach Committee met in November to write a report for the Narrative budget we realized
just how much outreach is done “behind the scenes”. I have included it in my report so that you
can see that Outreach is alive and well despite our small budget.
Respectfully submitted
Sylvi Dawes Outreach Chair
Outreach write-up for the Narrative Budget
Do not forget to entertain strangers, for by so doing some people have entertained angels
without knowing it. Hebrews13 vs 2
Outreach-giving to others within and outside of our community. St Thomas’s accomplishes this in
many ways:
Shelters: We deliver clothes, food and various items that are requested to Centre 454, The Well,
Cornerstone, The Shepherds of Good Hope, The Youville Centre, St Joseph’s Shelter (At the
table), The Ottawa Carleton Association for Persons with Developmental Disabilities and
Chrysallis House. One of our group goes to help sort clothes at St Luke’s. We also help Centre
454 with their annual Christmas party by delivering food and toys for this event.
Locally: St Thomas supports our local food bank with donations and Frederick Banting Adult
High School who are in need of clothing and support for their breakfast club. Main Street
Community Services have received clothing and household items and financial help from St
Thomas’. This year we joined with a bike team from Kanata United Church to raise money for
the Stittsville/Kanata Refugee Committee. This group sponsors refugees as they settle into their
new lives in Canada.
At Home: The Primates World Relief and Development Fund, the Anglican Church of
Canada’s agency for sustainable development, relief, refugees and global justice is well
supported in our parish. At coffee hour we use Fair Trade coffee. St Thomas opens its facilities to
Alcoholics Anonymous on a cost recovery basis and also to Victoria’s Quilts, a group that sews
quilts for cancer patients.. At Christmas time our Angel Tree program brings gifts to local
children. Once a month (except July and August) many volunteers put on our Open Table meal.
This self-supporting outreach provides a good meal and a chance to talk for all who attend. Here
is an excerpt from a ‘thank you ‘letter written to the Open table committee: ‘Thank you so much.
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUPS - OUTREACH COMMITTEE REPORT cont’d
We have had illness in the family and financial troubles – wonderful to be able to go out to
dinner without worrying. Great to have a good nutritious meal’. Our ACW group knits prayer
shawls and Afghans to give out to those in need of them. They also support financially St Jude’s
Cathedral in Iqaluit and are involved with the days for Girls program which is much needed to
provide kits to help with feminine hygiene. This year we hosted a Watoto Children’s Choir
helping them to fund raise for orphaned children in Uganda Some of our group took sandwiches
and treats to Carleton University {Pause table) during study week which was much appreciated
by the students.
In these and many other ways we are actively showing Gods love to one another but we feel
there is more we can do! We would like to compile a directory of outreach contacts within our
community. We want to investigate, with a view to supporting, programs for Aboriginal peoples
in Canada and we hope to support an initiative for affordable housing in Stittsville in conjunction
with a developer and other community organizations.
God’s power working in us is more than we can ask or imagine...

PARISH SUPPORT GROUPS – Outreach/ Refugee Sponsorship Group
The Kanata/Stittsville Refugee Sponsorship Group (KSRSG) was formed in 1996 and has seven
member churches, four from Kanata (Kanata and Glen Cairn United and St. John’s and St. Paul’s
Anglican), and three from Stittsville (St. Andrews Presbyterian, St. Thomas Anglican and
Stittsville United). The mandate of the KSRSG is to sponsor United Nations Convention
refugees from around the globe in order to provide assistance in their current country of
residence, to provide them with a safe haven and the opportunity for a new life in Canada and to
provide settlement assistance for refugees already in Canada. For those whom we sponsor, we
provide financial, social, emotional and logistical support for their first year in Canada. Our
funding comes from the annual pledges from member churches and occasional fundraising
activities.
In 2014 the efforts of the KSRSG were focused in five primary areas:
1. We continued to provide financial support to four siblings living in Rwanda who were
orphaned during the Rwandan genocide in 1994. We are committed to support them until they
have each obtained a post-secondary education. Three of the four siblings are now in university,
and over the next few years we anticipate that they will complete their studies.
2. We were contacted by Citizenship and Immigration Canada informing us that the sponsorship
application we had submitted for the Hakam family has been received. They are a family of six
from Afghanistan who are presently living in Tajikistan. We have worked closely with family
members here in Ottawa to secure their sponsorship and we look forward to hearing from
Citizenship and Immigration Canada regarding the outcome of their application.
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUPS- Outreach/ Refugee Sponsorship Group Cont’d
3. We have been working to complete a sponsorship application for relatives of the Hakam
family, the Nejrabi family of six, who are also refugees from Afghanistan living in Tajikistan.
With the help of family members here in Ottawa, we hope to have the documents completed soon
and will send them to Citizenship and Immigration Canada.
4. We have been working with other members of the Afghan community here in Ottawa to
complete a sponsorship application for the Ahmadi family of seven, who are from Afghanistan
and are presently living in Dubai. We hope to have the documents prepared and sent to
Citizenship and Immigration Canada early in 2015.
5. We participated in the “Ride for Refuge” bicycle fundraising event held in Kanata, which
raised over $7,000 for KSRSG. We thank John Toft of Glen Cairn United for all of his
assistance with this event.
In 2015 we will continue to offer financial support to four orphaned siblings in Rwanda to help
them obtain an education and become self-sufficient. We will continue to monitor the progress
of the sponsorship applications for the Hakam, Nejrabi and Ahmadi families. We have offered to
support other churches in sponsoring refugees from Syria, in response to the commitment of the
Canadian government to receive more refugees from Syria. We also expect to receive other
requests for sponsorship and when we have sufficient resources we will consider submitting
applications to sponsor individuals and families whom we believe we can assist.
We wish to thank everyone who contributes to and supports the work of the KSRSG.
Many thanks to Rev. Grant Dillenbeck for outlining the work of the KSRSG for our member
churches. On behalf of the group my heartfelt thanks for the generosity of the St. Thomas
community in answering our annual fundraising appeal and supporting Liz Norris and Sylvi
Dawes. Their participation in the 2014 Ride for Refuge raised approximately $1200 of the over
$7000 total. I’m sure Liz and Sylvi would encourage others to join in should the KSRSG take
part in the Ride in 2015.
Once again, may I thank those members of St. Thomas who continue to take an interest in the
daunting task of providing what support we may to so many who are disenfranchised and who
would face an impossibly bleak future without private sponsor groups like the KSRSG. As you
are aware, the sponsorship process is a bureaucratic nightmare for both sponsors and applicants.
Even straightforward applications may take several years from the start to that moment when
bewildered families or individuals are met at the airport. Everything has been taken from them
except hope. Sponsorship groups persevere in part because we carry the images of those we greet
at our airports – knowing that fresh hope and a new future can come through our efforts and the
support of our communities.

Respectfully submitted,
Robin Tilgner
KSRSG Rep.
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUP - Friends of the Family Funeral Rec’p
We have prepared for and served three funerals at the hall. We used a total of 38 loaves of
sandwiches and 29 pans of squares. (One funeral was quite large and hence the large
numbers.)Many volunteers helped prepare the food and served it to the grateful families.
Many thanks to all who helped in any way. Those who set up the tables, made calls, set the
tables, made sandwiches and squares and cookies, arranged sandwich and cookie trays, made
beverages, washed dishes, clean-up after wards—It just doesn’t happen without your help.
Since the last funeral the lists have been revised and all are ready to be handed out. Gert Brown
will be getting these to the leaders shortly and we will try to have a meeting the third week of
April to go over the process with all involved.
As the chair I see the appreciation first hand and receive many thanks on your behalf.
I would like to thank Gert for all her help and guidance since I assumed this role. Thanks also to
my co-chair Olive McKinley.
Respectfully submitted by
Judy Dallaway Chairperson

OUTREACH - ST THOMAS OPEN TABLE REPORT
This year the Open Table had expenditures totaling $2950. We provided 936 meals with total
donations amounting to $4437. This gave us a surplus of $1437. We are seeing more young
families and many new clients partake of the meals.
We have invited others to participate in the cooking and are open to new ideas and recipes to
improve our meals. We continue to look for new members to join our core Group which meets
the third Thursday of the month to plan the upcoming month. We meet in the Council room at
7pm and are usually out by 8:30. All are welcome.
We have had to replace one stove as the glass in the door was cracked and one of the knobs to
turn on the burners has been missing for some time. Reaching over with a wrench to turn it on
and off was dangerous. We were able to purchase it from Corbeil’s for $612.44. It is installed
and the old one removed. This was a January purchase.
This is an important Outreach Ministry that provide meals and fellowship to our community and
has grown over the last six years with the help of countless volunteers. We appreciate all of our
volunteers and especially our out- going members of our team. It cannot happen without your
generous help.
Respectfully submitted by
Judith Dallaway Chairperson
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUP - ACW REPORT
Once again it is time for our Annual Report. Where have all the days, weeks and months gone?
They fly by so quickly, we should not waste any time on regrets, complaints, minor irritations,
but enjoy the time we have, the health we have (we're here, aren't we?!), our friends and family.
Let's resolve to make each second count, be savoured and enjoyed. Time will still pass too
quickly, but we'll be happier, and so will those around us.
The year started with the renewal of our motions to donate moneys to the Memorial Fund, to
Guest Speakers for Charities, and for flowers once a year in memory of passed members.
One of our members, Rev. Sharron Bradley lead a Bible Study which was thought provoking and
provided us with interesting ideas in ways to read the Bible.
In March we had the pleasure of welcoming Rev. Dr. Betty Lynn Schwabb who drummed for us
and presented a short history of drumming in the Christian Church. This was an amazing
experience as we could feel the power of the drums in our bodies.
April brought a Food Preparation workshop that many ACW members attended, food being such
an important part of an Anglican Church Woman's life! April also brought Easter, and Easter
Baskets were made up for shut-ins and recently bereaved parishioners. An Easter Card depicting
our Altar on Easter Sunday was included in the package of cookies, together with a palm cross
that had been blessed on Palm Sunday.
May was the Annual General Meeting held at St. Stephens Church, 4 of our members attended,
loaded down with Campbell's Soup labels, used stamps and pop can tabs. May was also the
month for our Annual Bake and Garage Sale, held in conjunction with the Plant Sale.
June was our luncheon where we eat and socialise with many of our Parish ladies and retired
ACW members and July and August were set aside for summer rest and relaxation – although
how many retired women can count on that? And, in July Phyllis and Pat became greatgrandmothers!
Congratulations to Karen Ann who is now the Christian Formation Co-ordinator at St. Stephens
Church. We are sorry we will not be seeing so much of Karen Ann from now on, but are very
happy for her in her new position. We were also sorry to receive Phyllis's resignation as our
Secretary, but hope she is able to attend many of our meetings without having to concentrate on
writing.
Plans were made for our “Tiny Treasures” table at the Bazaar. Half of the proceeds will be going
to St. Judes, Iqaluit, and half to St. Luke's table. (We were able to donate $150.00 to each of
these projects), 2 of our members attended the Altar Guild AGM at the Church of the Epiphany.
In November we had an interesting talk on the Peace Park Labyrinth planned for Stittsville.
The 25th Anniversary of worship in the new Church takes place at the end of this year and our
150th Anniversary as a Parish will be celebrated at Pentecost, 2016. Members are working hard
on our Memory Book Project to be completed for these anniversaries.
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUP - ACW REPORT Cont’d
4 lap afghans were crocheted and given to Granite Ridge Nursing Home in 2014 and 3 prayer
shawls were also donated, blest and given away with love. This ongoing Ministry is a blessing to
both those who give and those who receive.
In 2014 our Sunshine Rep sent a total of 41 cards, consisting of Birthday, Thinking of You, Get
Well, Thank You, Easter and Christmas cards.
Respectfully submitted
Pat Dalphy
St. Thomas ACW President

PARISH SUPPORT GROUP - ACW FINANCIAL REPORT
A.C.W. FINANCIAL REPORT – JAN. 1 to DEC. 31, 2014:
REVENUE:
Thank Offering-----------------------------------$
Talent Money-------------------------------------Garage Sale---------------------------------------Bake Sale------------------------------------------Tiny Treasures Sale-----------------------------Church Calendar Sale--------------------------Donation-------------------------------------------H.S.T. Rebate (2013) -----------------------------

188.50
182.85
282.00
245.00
291.00
330.00
10.00
2.82

$

1,532.17

400.00
100.00
100.00
50.00
82.26
273.00

$

1,005.26

YEAR BALANCE:

$

526.91

EXPENSES:
Diocese of Ottawa (A.C.W.)--------------------$
Donations: Int. Biblical Drums-------------Rotary Club----------------------Ottawa Mission------------------Festival – Photo Album------------------------Church Calendars--------------------------------

OPENING BALANCE--------------$ 1,248.99
CREDIT-------------------------------526.91
BANK & BOOK BALANCE------$ 1,775.90
Prepared & Submitted by:
Enid Goodfellow,
Treasurer
Jan. 2, 2015
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUP - PASTORAL CARE REPORT

Sue Lomas joined Roy Baumgart and Tanya Drew as Spiritual Care Lay Visitors at the
Queensway Carleton Hospital; visiting Anglican patients on Mondays, attending coordinating
meetings and in-service sessions with other volunteers.
Tanya, Roy and Eleanor Baumgart have attended the Advanced Pastoral Care Training Course
plus regular in-service presentations.
St. Thomas is a caring parish whose members continue to show their Christian love by offering
rides, checking in with absent members and sharing their time and talents with others.
Bereavement support includes assisting at funeral liturgies, involvement with "Friends of the
Family", sending cards and delivering remembrances at Christmas and Easter.
The card secretary sends cards and delivers altar flowers to those facing the stress of illness or
care-giving and also to celebrate significant events. Please call the office or Tanya at 613-8369944.
There is a Prayer Ministry at St. Thomas whose 18 members pray confidentially for 40 persons
daily… requests may be placed by calling Rev. Jane McCaig or the church secretary, Elizabeth
Norris or Roy and Eleanor Baumgart at 613-831-4564
We meet twice a year for spiritual growth of the group as well as ourselves. This past year we
have received 157 prayer requests, praise and thanks for prayers answered as well as giving
praise and thanks for the lives of 12 people.
Parishioners are asked to speak to Rev. McCaig if they have concerns or wish to know more
about the Pastoral Care Ministry.
Respectfully submitted by Tanya Drew and Eleanor Baumgart
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FUNDRAISING GROCERY CERTIFICATES

St. Thomas earns 4 to 5 percent on the Grocery Certificates we purchase. When you participate
in the Grocery Certificate Program, you get to spend every cent of your money on groceries and
the percentage to the church comes from the store, not you! The participating stores include:
Presidents’ Choice Stores (Loblaw’s, Independent, and Superstore), Farm Boy, Food
Basics/Metro and Sobey’s. It is one of the easiest fundraising initiatives we currently have and
has the potential to be a real money maker for St. Thomas. You can purchase these certificates
after each church service or from the office during office hours.

Statement of Profit and Loss as at December 31, 2014
•
•
•

Grocery Certificates Purchased in 2013
Discount Earned
Average Discount Earned

Discounts Earned
Less Bank Charges

$ 86,281
$ 4,269
4.9%

4,269
125

Net Income for 2013

4,144

Less Transfer to General Fund

6,000

Net decrease in retain earnings

(1,856)

Respectfully submitted,
Brenda Miller
Grocery Certificate Co-Ordinator
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Fellowship Fundraising Report
Highlights of the 2014 Year
February 22nd Chilli Dinner contest followed by movie: 4 Wings & a prayer.
March 4th Shrove Tuesday (Pancake supper). Organized by Bob and Sue Lomas.
May 17th Plant and Garage Sale.
May 24th Watoto Childrens Choir. Outreach Organized by Sylvi Dawes –. People up and dance.
May 31st Fish Fry. Second successful year!
June 15th Strawberry Lunch
June 22nd Parish Picnic. Held at the home of the Waston-Laird family.
July 5th Summer Wine night. Wine tasting presented by Blue Gypsy Wines of Oxford Mills.
September 27th Fall Supper. We took a break of turkey and went with roast beef.
October 11th Road Rally. Fun family oriented drive. Enjoy the fall colours.
November 1st Snowflake Bazaar. What can be said but another successful year!
November 28th Stairwell Carollers. The first concert of the season. We received so many
positive compliments about this year’s performance, we are currently negotiating them to
perform for us in 2015.
November 29th Parade of Lights. Though we did not have a float in the parade, a hearty group
supplied free hot chocolate to the crowd watching the parade in front of our Church.
Looking back over the year, I am exhausted from looking at what we did as a Church. These
events are a success because of our members. Please volunteer to help out organize and run these
events. We are also interested in hearing about your ideas to enhance current events or new ideas.
Respectfully Submitted by
John Clarke – Fellowship/Fundraising Chair
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Fellowship Fundraising

Snowflake Bazaar Report

On Saturday, November l 5t, the flurries were not outside; they were throughout St. Thomas
church and hall ........ Flurries of activity, that is!!
It began immediately inside the church doors where an impressive array of adult and children's
books were offered for sale. Footprints on the floor led the uninitiated through the church doors
to a beautiful display of homemade Christmas ornaments, including Christmas spiders (which
were a great hit!) The footprints then continued on to the Home Decor section in the Council
room where a marvelous variety of household articles were on display. Down the back stairs, the
footprints led to the Sunday School room sporting a huge table filled with jewelry, along with
purses and scarves tastefully exhibited in the children's 'cubbies'.
In the main hall, the bake table offered everything from Christmas puddings to homemade
soup, cookies and squares to preserves and pies. The ACW had a 'Tiny Treasures' table
absolutely loaded with treasures!!! The Silent Auction was a huge drawing point offering
wonderful items donated by individuals and businesses throughout the community. The
Christmas crafts and gently used Christmas decorations were the 'icing on the cake' with an
awesome variety of articles for sale.
Finally .... the lunch room, staffed by smiling and efficient 'angels', offered a choice of several
types of homemade soup, rolls and sweets.
The crowds were impressive and impressed! Compliments abounded! It took many, MANY
hands and feet to make this year's bazaar such an amazing success. Over $6000 was raised to
assist in our St. Thomas ministries. To all of you, a huge round of applause! And, to God be the
glory!
Robin Tilgner and Bonnie McNally
Bazaar Coordinators
Baking Silent Auction Home Décor Crafts Xmas items Jewellery Books Luncheon Soup sales Pudding SalesDonations Other -

$1241.05
$1274.00
$ 753.65
$ 697.75
$ 570.00
$ 346.50
$ 199.10
$ 799.00
$ 68.00
$ 219.46
$ 50.00
$ 50.00
$ 6268.51
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CEMETERY REPORT

CEMETERY REPORT 2014
The annual meeting was held on May 6, 2014 with Brad Faulkner, Michael Whalen, Hugh
Sparks, Pat Dalphy and Gwelda O’Shaughnessy in attendance.
Robert Cavanagh agreed to do the grass cutting again with no price increase although he will be
increasing his price for other cemeteries due to the increased price of gas. We discussed this and
agreed to pay at least $5.00 more per cut as he does excellent work and cuts the City of Ottawa
area outside the gate and along Huntley Road.
Members of the Cemetery Committee met at the cemetery one Saturday and did some general
clean up including removing stones left behind on one grave along with adding top soil and grass
seed. The weeds were removed from the Urn Garden and the landscaped area at the front. Brad
cut down and removed the last remaining dead tree at the front of the cemetery.
My map of the old part of the cemetery is in very poor condition and difficult to read. Michael
offered to look into software to develop a new map that could be upgraded as needed and include
a listing of names and locations of the grave sites. Michael also, once again, redefined (with
white paint) all the markers in the new section of the cemetery.
Along with the price increase for lots that came into effect July 1, 2013, we increased the price
(in keeping with other area cemeteries) to $250. for the locating and digging for inurnments.
This increase came into effect July 1, 2014. The local funeral homes we deal with were surprised
we had not increased our price before now.
.
The memorial service was held on June 8th with Canon Michael officiating and Fern Massey on
her key board. Robert Cavanagh provided his usual excellent services in keeping the grass cut
and trimmed along with other general clean up.
Four burials and inurnments took place in 2014: Eileen Maude Allerton, Nelson and Ruth Brock,
Richard Schumacher and Melva Rose Witbeck. Eight (8) regular lots were purchased in 2014
and four (4) new monuments installed.
Respectfully submitted by
Gwelda O’Shaughnessy
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CEMETERY REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORT FOR 2014
CEMETERY

REVENUE/INCOME
Donations
Sale of Lots
Bank, HST, TD Trust Interest
Opening and Closing graves
Monument Fees

2.085.00
6,000.00
1,126.16
1,050.00
400.00

TOTAL REVENUE

10,661.16

EXPENDITURES
TD Trust
Labour and Maintenance
Digging, marking and closing
Advertise memorial service
Other – thank you gift and flowers

2,800,.00
2,210.00
850.00
28.24
84.78

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

5,973.02

NET GAIN

4.688.14

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL PICTURE
Opening Balance
Net gain
Closing Balance

17,.445./96
4,688.14
22,134.10

GIC (for emergencies)

5,975.84

Respectfully submitted
Gwelda O’Shaughnessy
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FACILITIES MINISTRY

Year end 2014 Final

Ministry and Mandate
Facilities Ministry mandate is to protect the integrity of the Church structure and property, the
health and safety of all users and to make it aesthetically pleasing and spiritually uplifting for all
who may enter. Our mandate includes identifying, implementing and reporting on all operating
maintenance and capital improvements for our Parish Church. Corporation and Parish Council
members and Vestry, as required, are also partners in this endeavor.
I am pleased to provide you with this year-end summary of our activities and hope that you find
it informative. First off, I wish to thank those parishioners who volunteered their time and skills
assisting me to deliver our Facilities Ministry. In 2014, as part of the Narrative Budget
development the Parish studied and documented all volunteer hours for every ministry,
committee and event. Our Facilities ministry utilized the skills of parishioners for a total of 483
volunteer hours last year to complete all projects and tasks. It is debatable what an average
hourly rate would be to calculate a dollar figure for all this time but I can safely estimate
somewhere between $10,000 and $20,000 considering many of the activities that would have
required paying for skilled trades people!
2014 was fairly quiet from a facilities point of view compared to my first six years a Facilities
Chair. In those years we had to fix or replace many major items such as the Church roof, eaves,
siding; replace three furnaces, add one A/C unit, replace the Belfry Tower cross and the outdoor
Church sign, and correct numerous lighting, electrical and plumbing issues. We also undertook a
major repair of the elevator system.
In 2014 I power washed the white vinyl siding on the entire outside of the Church. I used my
own power washer and this activity took me two days as no volunteers were available when I
was asked to do it. Pat McNally and Immo Tilgner helped me replace the stairs leading to the
Belfry Tower, a project that I was stalling for over six months because my brother-in-law, Bob
Lomas, was secretly planning on locking me in the Tower for a few hours as my volunteers all
went to lunch. I ensured Bob did not know about the date of our installation! Robin and Immo
also continued their project to beautify the Church. Last year they removed all the broken doors
on the table and chair storage areas and then replaced them with curtains which now look much
better and functionally are more efficient as well. Bob Lomas continued to manage the grass
cutting activities with a team of volunteers and this is very much appreciated. Ross Kennedy
again managed the gardens with another team of volunteers.
In early September Liz Norris and Pat McNally discovered a lot of water on the floor in the
furnace room and it was getting worse by the minute. Our resident engineer, Immo, studied the
problem and quickly offered a solution. He and I then set out to resolve the problems which
could have caused some serious issues if not attended to.
Pat Dalphy also assisted our ministry. She offered the potential services of her neighbor who had
40+, (may even be 50+) years as a professional mason. After discussing the disintegrating
concrete step issue with Jerry Van Geffen, we hired him and he worked tirelessly over many days
to rebuild our steps at both the Carleton-Cathcart and Main Street entrances. He also corrected
deficiencies on the concrete ramp. And he did all of this at a much reduced cost to the Church
and we are eternally grateful to him.
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Year end 2014 Final

In March we were advised by ThyssenKrupp Canada, our elevator maintenance company that
they would have to step up maintenance (and thus more costs) because the Technical Standards
Authority had deemed our elevator too old for regular visits. We had in 2013 spent considerable
money to update the elevator’s controls, wiring and electrical components, on the explicit
recommendation from ThyssenKrupp. I believe that investment was about $6,000. You may
remember we had been shut down for about six weeks and could not be authorized to turn it back
on without this investment. I do hope we can remain stable with this asset for many years to
come because replacing it? I don’t want to think any more about that.
In April we held the annual Church Spring clean-up. We had a great turn-out with 21
participants this year, and they again proved to be an army of dedicated parishioners, managing
to complete a total clean of the Church and the grounds and gardens. In October we held a fall
cleanup and 14 volunteers showed up and cleaned up the grounds and the inside of the Church
again. I followed this up by washing the outside windows again and taking another two loads of
leaf bags to the dump.
Enid Goodfellow used her magic to help me get rid of many of the old wooden tables that were
not being used and were cluttering up the Church Hall. She even managed to get some donations
for them. The Hall now looks much better.
Don Gillen and Pete Torunski helped me remove several piles of tree branches from the Church
property. After Bob Lomas did the annual pruning, I carted off two large loads to the dump with
my trailer. Then Don and Pete cut up the longest pieces, tied them up and put them out for
normal garbage pickup. Some were taken to be used for firewood.
I do not know if you are aware of this but the Church had to remove our cleaning contractors due
to some issues with quality of services provided. For over five months, Don Gillen, Liz Norris,
Robin and Immo Tilgner, and Bonnie and Pat McNally, supplemented at times by Rev. Jane and
I, cleaned the Church several times each week. This volunteer activity saved the Church about
$2,000 but wore everyone down quite a bit. A new cleaning company was contracted in early
December and we are pleased of this because almost everyone I mentioned came down sick in
the fall and I don’t know if this extra burden was the cause of it.
Liz Norris did a great job, as usual, tending to our annual contracts for elevator maintenance,
snow-plowing, and Church cleaning and for all furnace inspections.
In the last six years St. Thomas implemented several energy saving projects which, as promised,
have returned significant savings to the costs of running our Church. In 2007 and 2008 the
Church paid, on average, $9,100 per year for utilities including gas, water, and hydro. In 2009 we
paid $9,937 for these. In 2013 our total bill for utilities was $8,200 and total utility costs had
been lower in each year of the last three. Although our costs rose slightly in 2014 due to inflation
(higher electricity and gas charges), in aggregate we reduced our Church utility costs by about
20% since we implemented these projects.
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For the 2015 year I require your help again and I would appreciate if you would make time to
assist me keeping our Church safe and sound. Most of the projects are small. If you are an
electrician or plumber, know woodworking and carpentry or know anything about mechanical
systems please let me know as I could use some help in this ministry. If you aren’t any of these
and can wash windows or rake lawns I need your help in the Spring Cleanup morning in 2015,
tentatively scheduled for Saturday April 18th (9 am to Noon, with lunch provided). Rain date is
Saturday April 25th.
Thanks again to all of you for your assistance and I apologize if I missed anyone.
Respectfully submitted by,
Bob McCaig
Facilities Chairperson
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FINANCIAL REPORTS

Year 2012

BOOKKEEPER’S REPORT – for the year ending December 31, 2014
I am pleased to submit the audited financial reports for St. Thomas for the year ending
December 31, 2014 and the proposed Budget for 2015.
Here are the highlights for the year ending 2014:
•
The year ended with a Deficit of $7,021 compared to the budgeted deficit of $1,989.
•
We fully met all Diocesan commitments for the year.
•
$33,642 (17.9% of all incomes including flow-though incomes) was distributed to
Outreach and Mission initiatives throughout the year.
•
We implemented one large project and four small projects. All of the projects were 100%
funded and therefore did not affect the Operating Deficit.
•
General Fund Operating Incomes were $2,748 lower than budgeted and General Fund
Operating Expenditures were $2,053 higher than budgeted.
St. Thomas incomes for the year were used as follows (% of total incomes):

Diocesan Commitments
Staff and Office Expenses
Church Property
Parish & Outreach Programs
Other Expenses
Deficit

2014
%

2013
%

70
20
8
2
3
(3)

70
22
8
3
2
(5)

In 2014 St. Thomas received a Diocesan
approved Support Grant in the amount of
$2,500 to help alleviate our deficit.
A high percentage of Offerings come in during
November and December. This year it was
26%. This cash flow uncertainty leads to
ministry-related
expenditure
containment
decisions.

Attached are the financial statements for St. Thomas for the year ending 2014. I have enhanced
the Notes section for the financial statements and hopefully make them easier to understand.
Please refer to the Notes section for details.
Parish finances are managed very well at St. Thomas with excellent financial controls in place.
Parish Council reviews the financial position on a monthly basis and decisions requiring
additional foresight, advice or authorization are directed to Corporation members.
My bookkeeping duties are made easier thanks to the outstanding record-keeping by Bob
Lomas, our Envelope Secretary, by Lyle Stevenson and our Counter’s Team and by Liz Norris
who administers all payments, contracts and rental agreements for the Church. I also thank
John Smith and Lyle Stevenson in their roles as Financial Reviewers. Their reviews and the
advice provided by them ensure that we are constantly improving our record-keeping and our
reporting. I also appreciate all the work done by Brenda Miller who keeps the records for the
Grocery Fund accurately. Lastly I thank our Corporation and Parish Council members for their
guidance and support throughout the year.
I welcome any comments or suggestions that would provide additional insights, comparative
analysis and/or other areas that would improve my communication to you.
Respectfully submitted by,

Bob McCaig
Certified Management Accountant
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St. Thomas Anglican Church
High Level Consolidated Income & Expense Statement
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
2014 - Actual

GENERAL FUND INCOMES
Offerings/Bequests
Investment Income
Fundraising Income
Other Assessed Income
Net Assessed Income
Non-Assessed Income
Total Income Before Transfers
Transfers to Other Funds
TOTAL GENERAL FUND INCOMES
GENERAL FUND EXPENSES
Diocesan Commitments
Staff
Office/Computer Supplies
Utilities
Church Property
Parish Outreach
Parish Programs
Other Expenses
Total Expenses Before Transfers
Transfers to Other Funds
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES

$

$
$

$

$
$

2014 - Budget

144,635 $
2,172
18,353
4,438
6,331
4,021
179,950 $
(633)
179,317 $

156,566 $
2,338
16,420
2,110
2,368
2,500
182,302 $
(237)
182,065 $

148,287
2,328
13,402
2,184
9,934
2,654
178,789
(993)
177,796

125,245
36,198
4,098
8,782
5,401
973
2,379
3,226
186,302
186,302

125,423
35,291
4,302
8,408
5,281
2,444
3,100
184,249
184,249

125,282
35,254
4,083
8,330
5,407
1,900
3,174
3,229
186,659
186,659

$

$
$

GENERAL FUND SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

$

(6,985) $

FLOWTHROUGH & OTHER FUND ITEMS (NET)

$

(36) $

CONSOLIDATED SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

$

(7,021) $
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2013 - Actual

$

$
$

(2,184) $
195

$

(1,989) $

(8,863)
419
(8,444)

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
2014 - Actual

GENERAL FUND INCOMES
OFFERINGS/BEQUESTS Note 2
Bequests Offering
Christmas Offering
Easter Offering
Initial Offering
Open Offering
Other Offerings Note 3
PAR & Regular Envelope Offering
Rector's Discretionary Fund Note 4
Refugee Offering
Thanksgiving Offering
Worship & Liturgy Offering
Subtotal Offerings/Bequests
INVESTMENT INCOME
CTF - Bequest #2587 Interest Note 5
CTF - Bequest #2658 Interest Note 6
CTF - Rectory #4040 Interest Note 7
GIC Interest - General Fund Note 8
Subtotal Investment Income
FUNDRAISING INCOME
Garden Plant Sales
Grocery Certificates Note 9
Parish Fundraising (Net) Note 10
Subtotal Fundraising Income
OTHER ASSESSED INCOME
Other Expenses Recovered Note 11
Other Miscellaneous Note 12
Peoples' Pulpit Ads
Wedding/Funeral/Reception
Subtotal Other Assessed Income
NET ASSESSED INCOME
Facilities Cost Recovery

$

$
$

$
$

$
$

2014 - Budget

3,765
1,665
108
3,318
134,404
190
995
190
144,635

$

2,113
59
2,172

$

476
6,000
11,877
18,353

$

$
$

$
$

$

48
1,202
288
2,900
4,438

$

6,331

2013- Actual

4,600
2,500
150
4,300
500
143,016
1,400
100
156,566

$

2,113
225
2,338

$

420
6,000
10,000
16,420

$

$
$

$

2,942
2,321
154
3,744
530
137,016
200
1,280
100
148,287
2,113
215
2,328
420
3,500
9,482
13,402

$

$

100
560
450
1,000
2,110

$

47
1,031
256
850
2,184

$

2,368

$

9,934

$

1,521
2,500
4,021

$

2,500
2,500

$

154
2,500
2,654

$

179,950

$

182,302

$

178,789

NON-ASSESSED INCOME
Miscellaneous Non-Assessed Income Note 13

Diocesan Support Grant Note 14
Subtotal Non-Assessed Income
TOTAL INCOMES BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
Contingency Fund (10% Recovery) Note 15
Subtotal Transfers to Other Funds
TOTAL GENERAL FUND INCOMES

$
$
$
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(633) $
(633) $
179,317

$

(237) $
(237) $
182,065

$

(993)
(993)
177,796

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
2014 - Actual

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES
DIOCESAN COMMITMENTS
ECOPS Note 16
Fair Share Note 17
Insurance
Subtotal Diocesan Commitments
STAFF
Caretaker
Employer Share of CPP/EI
Organist
Replacement Priests
Secretary
Treasurer/Bookkeeper
Youth Ministry Support
Subtotal Staff
OFFICE/COMPUTER SUPPLIES
Office & Computer Equipment
Supplies, Postage, Bulletin
Photocopy Services
Subtotal Office/Computer Supplies
UTILITIES
Gas
Hydro
Internet/Email
Security System
Telephone
Water
Subtotal Utilities
CHURCH PROPERTY
Cleaner's Supplies
Elevator
Furnace & A/C Maintenance Plans
Normal Maintenance & Repair
Piano Tuning
Snow Removal & Grass Cutting
Subtotal Church Property
PARISH OUTREACH
Outreach
Refugee
Subtotal Parish Outreach

$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$
$
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2014 - Budget

91,093
29,966
4,186
125,245

$

3,164
471
8,004
2,259
20,800
1,500
36,198

$

260
856
2,982
4,098

$

3,012
2,503
785
224
1,541
717
8,782

$

346
701
814
593
270
2,677
5,401

$

973
973

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

2013- Actual

91,097
29,966
4,360
125,423

$

4,683
424
8,004
576
20,104
1,500
35,291

$

250
1,200
2,852
4,302

$

2,672
2,251
793
343
1,577
772
8,408

$

400
681
1,200
3,000
5,281

$

-

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

88,099
32,908
4,275
125,282
4,683
426
7,881
740
20,024
1,500
35,254
84
1,175
2,824
4,083
2,646
2,230
785
340
1,565
764
8,330
392
668
1,111
239
2,997
5,407
1,700
200
1,900

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
2014 - Actual

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES (Continued)
PARISH PROGRAMS
Adult Education
God's Garden (Church School)
Music - Children's Choir
Music - Cornerstone
Music - Licences
Music - Senior Choir
Parish Picnic
Pastoral Care
Reception/Catering
Stewardship
Worship & Liturgy
Jumpin' Spirits Group
Subtotal Parish Programs

160
774
360
22
254
809
2,379

$

$

$

728
300
496
251
411
147
482
131
280
3,226

$

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES

$

GENERAL FUND SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

$

OTHER EXPENSES
Advertising
Altar Guild Supplies
Bank Charges
Communications
Counter's Expense
Fellowship & Hospitality
Kitchen Committee
Miscellaneous Expense
Peoples' Pulpit
Rector Discretionary Expense
Synod
Subtotal Other Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES BEFORE TRANSFERS

$

2014 - Budget

$
$
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2013- Actual

500
750
100
369
100
150
125
100
250
2,444

$

$

$

500
600
530
100
20
300
200
400
150
300
3,100

$

553
628
532
130
10
414
214
6
362
100
280
3,229

186,302

$

184,249

$

186,659

186,302

$

184,249

$

186,659

$

(6,985) $

$

(2,184) $

532
770
369
232
69
204
774
224
3,174

(8,863)

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
2014 - Actual

2014 - Budget

2013- Actual

FLOWTHROUGH & OTHER FUND ITEMS

OTHER OFFERINGS Note 18
Cemetery Fund Offering
Contingency Fund Offering Note 19
Food Bank Offering
GIFT Fund Offering (50% to Parish) Note 20
Improvement Fund Offering Note 21
Jumpin' Spirits Fund Offering
Memorial Fund Offering
Open Table Fund Offering
PWRDF Offering
PWRDF Special Appeal Offering

Subtotal Other Offerings

$

220

$

14,000
79
315
4,128
3,568
200

60

$

17,000
-

60
10
16,480
5,152
2,770
4,010
3,890
435

$

22,510

$

17,060

$

32,807

$

3,338

$

-

$

3,482
3,487

OTHER EXPENSES
Open Table Fund Expenses
Memorial Fund Expenses

Subtotal Other Expenses

-

-

5

$

3,338

$

-

$

$

404

$

-

$

-

398
498
-

-

249
70

$

900
2,000
670
151
8,563
775
13,463 $

PROJECT EXPENSES Note 22
Central Vacuum Rebuild
Church Hall Floor Cleaning & Waxing
Church Hall Tables
Concrete Steps Rebuild
Donation to Bruyere Shelter Foundation
Exterior Banner
Full Page Colour Advertising - 1 Time
Laminate Prayer Cards
Lock System - Carleton-Cathcart Doors
Outreach Nicaragua Trip
Office Computer
Sanctuary Projector System
Subtotal Project Expenses

- $

-

13,420
14,635

OTHER INCOMES
HST Recovered Note 23
Open Table GIC Interest
Transfer in from Contingency Fund Note 24
Transfer in from Gift Fund Note 24
Transfer in from Improvement Fund Note 24

$

Transfer in from Jumpin' Spirits Fund Note 24

Transfer in from Memorial Fund Note 24
Transfer in from Open Table Fund Note 24
Subtotal Other Incomes

$
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3,373

$

93
1,179
5,843
1,051
5,563
17,102 $

$

4,588

195
195 $

-

195
13,385
852
398
19,418

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
2014 - Actual

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS Note 25
Transfer to Cemetery Fund
Transfer to Contingency Fund
Transfer to Food Bank
Transfer to GIFT Fund
Transfer to Improvement Fund
Transfer to Jumpin' Spirits Fund
Transfer to Memorial Fund
Transfer to Open Table Fund - Operations
Transfer to Open Table Fund - GIC Interest
Transfer to PWRDF
Transfer to Rector's Contingency Fund
HST Recovery Credited to Assets/Funds
Subtotal Transfers to Other Funds
CONSOLIDATED SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

$

2014 - Budget

2013- Actual

$

220 $
14,000
79
315
790
93
3,768
209
3,373
22,847 $

60 $
17,000
17,060 $

60
10
16,480
4,928
2,765
333
195
4,325
4,588
33,684

$

(7,021) $

(1,989) $

(8,444)
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St. Thomas Anglican Church
Comparative Balance Sheet (Consolidated)
As at: December 31, 2014
December 31
2014

December 31
2013

December 31
2012

$

$

$

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Petty Cash
Grocery Certificate Funds for Deposit
St. Thomas Bank Account
Grocery Certificate Bank Account
Grocery Certificates Inventory
Subtotal Current Assets
INVESTMENTS
GICs - General Fund (Note 8)
GICs - Open Table Fund
CTF #2587 Bequest (Note 5)
CTF #2658 Bequest (Note 6)
CTF #4040 Rectory (Note 7)
Subtotal Investments
OTHER ASSETS
Other Accounts Receivable
HST Receivable (Note 26)
Prepaid Project Expenditures
Subtotal Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable (Note 27)
Deferred Income (Note 28)
Payroll Deductions Payable (Note 29)
Subtotal Liabilities
FUND BALANCES
Alpha Fund (Note 30)
Asset Fund (Note 31)
Church Improvement Fund (Note 21)
Contingency Fund (Note 19)
General Fund
GIFT Fund (Note 20)
Grocery Certificate Fund
Jumpin' Spirits Fund (Note 32)
Memorial Fund
Open Table Fund (Note 33)
Rector's Discretionary Fund (Note 4)
Subtotal Fund Balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

$

$

$

$

$

50.00
43,854.78
6,744.00
15,785.00
66,433.78

10,288.19
454.77
2,338.31
85,931.20
99,012.47

2,281.89
2,281.89

$

50.00
1,210.00
38,641.09
2,355.00
20,820.00
63,076.09

$

$

11,253.00
10,195.00
441.33
2,273.87
85,931.20
$ 110,094.40

$

$

$

$

3,372.98
3,372.98

$

$

50.00
42,776.18
9,035.00
15,550.00
67,411.18

11,037.76
428.25
2,209.43
85,931.20
99,606.64

2,700
4,587.66
7,287.66

$ 167,728.14

$ 176,543.47

$ 174,305.48

$

517.63
37.64
555.27

$

997.66
7.12
1,004.78

$

$

254.55
88,724.28
934.88
1,505.27
10,567.02
24,941.87
22,529.00
10.00
4,023.01
13,373.64
309.45
$ 167,172.97

$

88,646.40
1,985.59
2,051.06
17,587.77
18,778.16
24,385.00
5,493.92
3,708.01
12,802.78
100.00
$ 175,538.69

$

88,568.88
1,985.59
1,399.39
26,226.44
15,664.22
24,585.00
618.50
1,795.52
12,274.81
$ 173,118.35

$ 167,728.24

$ 176,543.47

$ 174,305.48

$
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$

$

1,058.60
128.53
1,187.13

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Balance Sheet Funds - Detail
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
CTF #2587 Isabel Hodgins Bequest Fund

(Note 5)

Opening balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: Change in Book Value: 2014 dividend cheque reinvested
Closing balance as at December 31, 2014 (M arket value = $483.04)

CTF #2658 Warner Eakins Bequest Fund (Note 6)
Opening balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: Change in Book Value: 2014 dividend cheque reinvested
Closing balance as at December 31, 2014 (Market value = $2,311.42)
CTF #4040 Rectory Fund (Note 7)
Opening balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: Change in Book Value: 2014 dividends used by Diocese to offset ECOPS ($2,112.60)
Closing balance as at December 31, 2014 (Market value = $75,762.41)

$
$

$
$

441.33
13.44
454.77

2,273.87
64.44
2,338.31

$ 85,931.20
$ 85,931.20

BALANCE SHEET FUNDS (Details)
Alpha Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: Offerings
Balance as at December 31, 2014
Contingency Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: Offerings
Add: 10% cost recovery
Less: Rebuild Central Vacuum
Less: New Office Computer
Balance as at December 31, 2014
Memorial Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: Offerings
Balance as at December 31, 2014

$
$

$

$

$
$

Church Improvement Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
$
Add: Offerings
Less: Rebuild Carleton-Cathcart Locks
Less: Rebuild Concrete Steps
Balance as at December 31, 2014
$
GIFT Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: 50% of 2014 offerings
Less: Outreach Nicaragua Trip
Less: Full Page Colour Ad
Less: Donation to Bruyere Shelter
Less: Watoto Concert Costs
Less: Outreach donation
Balance as at December 31, 2014

Grocery Certificates Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
$ 24,385.00
Add: 2014 Certificate purchases
86,281.25
Less: Cheques issued
(82,012.00)
Less: Bank charges
(125.25)
Less: Transfer to General Fund
(6,000.00)
Balance as at December 31, 2014
$ 22,529.00

254.55
254.55

2,051.06
633.14
(404.33)
(774.60)
1,505.27

3,708.01
315.00
4,023.01

** Discounts earned in 2014

$

Open Table Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: Offerings
Add: GIC interest income
Less: Meal & program expenditures
Less: 10% offerings to General Fund
Less: $20/mo. coffee charge
Balance as at December 31, 2014

$ 12,802.78
4,444.55
93.19
(3,282.42)
(444.46)
(240.00)
$ 13,373.64

Rector's Discretionary Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
$
Add: Offerings
Add: Unused budget transferred
Balance as at December 31, 2014
$

1,985.59
(150.71)
(900.00)
934.88

Jumpin' Spirits Fund
Balance as at January 1, 2014
Add: Offerings
Less: Outreach Nicaragua Trip
Less: Fundraising expenses
Balance as at December 31, 2014

$ 18,778.16
12,833.87
(3,000.00)
(670.16)
(2,000.00)
(173.05)
(826.95)
$ 24,941.87
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$

4,268.75

100.00
59.45
150.00
309.45

5,493.92
79.00
(5,562.92)
0.00
$
10.00

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended: December 31, 2014

Opening Balance as at January 1
Receipts from congregation
Receipts from other sources
Transfers to General Fund from Other Funds
Payments to suppliers, staff, Diocese and Outreach activities
Closing balance as at December 31
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2014

2013

$ 176,543.47

$ 174,305.48

$ 165,917.00
38,918.00
(4,273.82)
$ (209,376.41)

$ 177,934.00
33,662.00
(1,186.79)
$ (208,171.22)

$ 167,728.24

$ 176,543.47

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
Note 1:

Accounting for St. Thomas is done using the Modified Cash Basis. This means, for the
most part, that accounting transactions are recorded in the year they are received and the
year they are paid. Some adjustments, called accruals, are made for items that are certain
and that pertain to the year being reported on. For example, in these reports, an accrual
was made to Accounts Payable to record HST refunds claimed on behalf of the Altar
Guild, ACW and Cemetery but won't be paid to these organizations until the new year.

Note 2:

The Offerings received are recorded in various accounts for statistical and Diocesan
reporting purposes. Most of the Offerings received are used in the general operations of the
Church and Parish. Others are called flow-through because they are specifically reserved
for other organizations or Reserved Funds within St. Thomas. During 2014 there were 137
Identifiable Givers in St. Thomas compared to 146 in 2013 and 152 in 2012.
An Identifiable Giver, as defined by the Diocese, is a person or family who at year end is
on the parish list, and who has received from the Church, an income tax receipt for givings
during the year of $25 or more. Individual members of families who receive separate tax
receipts will be counted separately. Persons not on the parish list who make donations to
the Church and receive tax receipts are not counted.
Of the 137 Identifiable Givers in 2014, their average annual offering was $1,064.38. This
compares to $1,027.00 in 2013 and $1,029.00 in 2012. The Diocese of Ottawa average
was $1,287.00 in 2013, the last year this statistic was reported. St. Thomas average offering
for 2013 was 20% lower than the average in the Diocese for 2013. These statistics do not
include GIFT offerings.
84 parishioners (identified donors) used offering envelopes during 2014, the same as in 2013.
During 2012, 90 families used offering envelopes. 60 parishioners used PAR for their
offerings during 2014 compared to 62 in 2013 and 2012.
Total tax receipts for 2014 for all forms of offerings (except non-receiptable cash offerings)
was $145,957 compared to $150,014 in 2013 and $156,416 in 2012. These figures include
donations to the Flower Fund for which the accounting is recorded in the Altar Guild records.
The following table provides an overview of the offerings distribution at St. Thomas for the
2014 year.

Annual Givings
+ $3,000
$2,000 - $2,999
$1,500 - $1,999
$1,000 - $1,499
$500 - $999
$250 - $499
$25 - $249
* Totals *

Distribution by # of Givers
%
#
9
6.6
7
5.1
15
10.9
15
10.9
44
32.1
25
18.2
22
16.1
137
100.0
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Distribution by $ Givings
$
%
42,297
29.0
17,150
11.8
25,401
17.4
18,755
12.8
30,722
21.0
8,596
5.9
3,036
2.1
145,957
100.0

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
Note 3:

Other Offerings include miscellaneous tax receiptable offerings made by parishioners and
other donors. In past years this included offerings for the grass repair program.

Note 4:

The Rector's Discretionary Fund reserves offerings made to St. Thomas specifically
ear-marked for the Rector to use as required. This Fund allows the Incumbent to respond to
a variety of immediate and often confidential needs of individuals or causes. In the past
St. Thomas relied on an annual budget for this purpose and Corporation has decided that
unused portions of the budget and offerings will be carried forward in this new Fund.

Note 5:

CTF #2587 - Isabel Hodgins Bequest Fund is a consolidated trust fund managed for
St. Thomas by the Diocese of Ottawa. The book value of this fund on December 31, 2014
was $454.77 and the market value was $483.04. In 2011 CTF #2587 was cashed out
to pay for the Church's new roof. After the books were closed for the year, the Diocese
informed St. Thomas that an amount of $415.57 remained in the Fund which represented
the dividends for the last quarter that had not been included in the final payment to
St. Thomas. At the present time dividends earned within the Fund are recapitalized back
in the Fund at a rate of $0.60 per unit owned (will go to $0.66 per unit owned in 2015).

Note 6:

CTF #2658 - Warner Eakins Bequest Fund is a consolidated trust fund managed for
St. Thomas by the Diocese of Ottawa. The book value of this fund on December 31, 2014
was $2,338.31 and the market value was $2,311.42. At the present time dividends earned
within the Fund are recapitalized back in the Fund at a rate of $0.60 per unit owned.

Note 7:

CTF #4040 Rectory Fund is a consolidated trust fund managed for St. Thomas by the
Diocese of Ottawa. The book value of this fund on December 31, 2014 was $85,931.20
and the market value as at was $75,762.41. The Diocese keeps the dividends earned from
this fund to offset the annual cost of Equalized Cost of Priestly Services (ECOPS). In 2014
amount of dividends retained by the Diocese was $2,112.60. At the present time dividends
earned on this Fund are $0.60 per unit owned.

Note 8:

St. Thomas cashed its GIC in 2014 to provide more liquidity in its bank account. This was
done to ensure normal operating costs could be paid as required.

Note 9:

The Grocery Certificates program is a fundraising program at St. Thomas. In 2014, $6,000
from the program's net equity was transferred to the General Fund. This amount has
exceeded the true net earnings for the year by about $1,500. We had budgeted for an
increase in GC sales of $50,000 for the year and only $17,000 materialized. In 2014
$94,762 of certificates were sold compared to $77,635 in 2013. This compares to over
$100,000 in prior years. It is estimated that if only half of St. Thomas's parishioner
families (i.e. about 100 families out of more than 200 families) bought the certificates from
St. Thomas instead of paying cash for their groceries (average $400 per month), that
St. Thomas would earn between $19,200 and $24,000 per year! Certificates cost the exact
same as you would pay for your groceries but St. Thomas now earns 5% on all sales.
In 2013 St. Thomas expanded its program to include Farm Boy, Food Basics, and Sobey's.
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St. Thomas Anglican Church
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
Note 10:

A variety of fundraising events were held by our Fundraising Committee and its volunteers
during 2014 which raised $18,353 (net amount after expenses). These funds are used in the
general operations of the Church to assist various ministries in meeting their annual plans.
You should note that the amounts raised from all fundraising activities in 2014 significantly
surpassed all other years; ~ $5,000 higher than in 2013, and fundraising has now become
the second highest income source for St. Thomas next to Offerings.
The fundraising events and activities held included the following:

St. Thomas Fundraising - 2014 Year
St. Thomas Event/Activity
Fish Fry
Pancake Dinner
Chili Cook-Off
Garden Plant Sales
Strawberry Social
Quilt Draw
Wine Tasting
Grocery Certificate Sales
Roast Beef Dinner
Hurley's Restaurant Rebate
Snowflake Bazaar
Stairwell Carollers Concert
Singing Christmas Carollers
Pen Sales
** Totals **

Incomes
Expenses
Net
$ 2,517.50 $ 1,421.94 $ 1,095.56
168.77
168.77
175.00
17.27
157.73
476.00
476.00
215.00
124.97
90.03
47.00
47.00
61.00
25.00
36.00
6,000.00
6,000.00
3,106.00
1,072.36
2,033.64
345.00
345.00
7,149.05
1,017.07
6,131.98
1,970.00
500.00
1,470.00
70.00
70.00
471.75
240.81
230.94
$ 22,772.07 $ 4,419.42 $ 18,352.65

Note 11:

Other Expenses Recovered records payments made to St. Thomas for the use of our
photocopier and for coffee donations made.

Note 12:

Other Miscellaneous Income relates to assessable income received which is not otherwise
attributable to other defined income categories. This amount includes offerings for bibles
for God's Garden, Alpha program costs, anniversary donations (which are used for gifts)
and other offerings that cannot be posted to other named accounts (i.e. sale of old tables).

Note 13:

Miscellaneous Non-Assessed Income relates to monies received that will not be assessed
by the Diocese towards St. Thomas's Fair Share assessment. In 2014 $826.95 was
transferred from the GIFT Fund to pay for Outreach projects. Additionally, there were
transfers from the Open Table Fund as follows: $444.46 representing 10% of the Fund's
normal incomes (used to offset the operating costs of the Church); and $240.00 ($20/month)
to offset the cost of coffee supplies used.
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St. Thomas Anglican Church
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
Note 14:

For the third year in a row St. Thomas has been given a non-assessable Support grant in the
amount of $2,500 from the Diocese to help offset operating costs. We applied for and we
were approved for another grant for 2015 also in the amount of $2,500.

Note 15:

Many years ago, St. Thomas's Corporation and Parish Council members established a
parish regulation whereby 10% of all monies earned from rental incomes would be
transferred to the Contingency Fund. The regulation states that this transfer must occur
before determination of the Net Surplus or Deficit position for the year, thereby rendering
this transfer a form of income reduction. Even though this is done in the parish this amount
must be added back for Diocesan Fair Share determination at year end. In 2014, $633
was transferred to the Contingency Fund.

Note 16:

ECOPS (Equalized Cost of Priestly Services) is a program administered by the Diocese
to "equalize" the cost of clergy appointments for all parishes regardless of tenure or salary
level of the incumbent. It does not represent the actual amount paid to the incumbent.
ECOPS enables clergy appointments to be guided principally by ministry gifts and their
"fit" with a parish. With ECOPS our bishop is able to appoint senior, experienced clergy
with particular gifts to any parish in the Diocese. With ECOPS, the amount parishes pay for
priestly services is a function of their share of the total diocesan cost of priestly services
(excluding housing) and not a function of their particular incumbent's stipendiary costs.
The Parish Fair Share percentage under ECOPS is the 3-year average of a parish's
assessable income expressed over the total of all the parishes' net assessable income.

Note 17:

Fair Share is a Diocesan assessment based on the Parish`s previous three-year average
of its assessable incomes less adjustments such as the Incumbent`s salary and approved
capital improvements made by the Parish (such as roof replacements, piano purchases, and
similar expenditures). GIFT Fund donations are not assessable income.
The Diocese uses Fair Share income to pay for essential diocesan activities, just as parishes
use money from envelopes. The Diocese uses part of this money from the parishes to fund
the work of the National Church, besides supporting important local programs.
Our Fair Share allocation is expected to increase starting in 2016 due to the exemptions we
received for our new roof expenditures not being available in the averaging calculation any
more.

Note 18:

Other Offerings relate entirely to offerings received that are either considered flow-through
or are reserved for special Funds. All offerings made to these Funds or organizations are
either paid out to them during the year or held in reserve for the use of the Fund. For example,
in 2014, $3,568 was donated by St. Thomas parishioners to PWRDF and this amount was
paid to this organization.

Note 19:

The Contingency Fund is a fund set up several years ago to cover unexpected and/or
emergency-type expenditures. An example is a furnace that needed replacement but had
not been budgeted for.
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St. Thomas Anglican Church
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
Note 20:

St. Thomas was a member of the first group of parishes in the Diocese to participate in the
GIFT program. Contributions by parishioners during 2014 amounted to $25,667.74 of
which 50% was returned to St. Thomas and 50% went to the Diocese. These amounts
will be exempted from Fair Share calculations in future years.
The following table provides details of all St. Thomas GIFT Fund activity since its inception
in 2011.

2011
st

January 1 Balance
$
Offerings @ 50% to Parish
New Outdoor Sign
Prayer Room Furnishings
Projection System - Shared Cost
Outside Banner
Laminate Prayer Cards
Church Hall Tables
Outreach Nicaragua Trip
Full Page Colour Ad
Donation to Bruyere Foundation
Watoto Concert Costs
Outreach Donation
December 31st Balance
$

2012

2013

2014

$ 7,699.17 $ 15,664.22 $ 18,778.16
7,699.17
14,636.91
16,479.71
12,833.87
(6,147.00)
(524.86)
(12,548.69)
(248.66)
(70.00)
(498.42)
(3,000.00)
(670.16)
(2,000.00)
(173.05)
(826.95)
7,699.17 $ 15,664.22 $ 18,778.16 $ 24,941.87

Note 21:

The Church Improvement Fund is a new fund set up in 2010 to record offerings specifically
made towards major Church projects that maintain the integrity of the Church structure
and property, or enhance its internal systems, such as its sound system.

Note 22:

All St. Thomas project costs are charged either directly to the Income Statement or to a
Fund when authorized by Corporation. When project costs are charged to a Fund there is no
effect on the Income Statement in terms of surplus or deficit position.
In 2014, St. Thomas implemented seven deemed projects, all of which were 100% funded
prior to the project being implemented. This has been the St. Thomas process for the last
nine years. Details of the projects can be found on the Detailed Consolidated Income and
Expense Statement in the Projects Expenses section.
Details of which Fund paid for the project can be found in the Balance Sheet Funds - Detail
information sheet.

Note 23:

St. Thomas received a HST refund cheque in the amount of $3,372.98 from the Canada
Revenue Agency in 2014. Of this amount, $3,103.32 was attributable to the General Fund
expenditures from 2013 and the balance $269.66 was attributable to expenditures from
the ACW, Altar Guild and Cemetery during 2013.

54

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended: December 31, 2014
Note 24:

As stated earlier all project expenditures at St. Thomas are fully funded before
implementation. These transfers from the Funds represent the monies used to pay for the
projects listed implemented.

Note 25:

Transfers to Other Funds represent the amounts paid to other organizations or moved to
the reserved Funds. See also Note 18.

Note 26:

The HST Receivable in 2014 represents 0.6969% of all eligible expenditures by the Church
and by the ACW, Altar Guild and the Cemetery Corporation. Of the $2,281.89 owing to
St. Thomas as at December 31st from the Canada Revenue Agency, $2,085.39 will be paid
to the General Fund when received in 2015 and the balance $196.50 will be paid to the ACW,
Altar Guild and the Cemetery Corporation.

Note 27:

At year end various parties were owed monies by St. Thomas. As stated in Note 26, $196.50
was owed to the ACW, Altar Guild and the Cemetery Corporation representing their share
of the 2014 HST refund we will receive and pay to them in 2015. $250 was accrued to be
paid to Bleekers as a result of the projection system requiring repairs after a lightening
strike on the Church in December. This is an estimate as the invoice had not been received.
$71.08 was accrued to include Internet costs for December because the invoice had not
been received from Primus.

Note 28:

Deferred Income represented offerings made by parishioners during 2012 that are held in
trust until 2013.

Note 29:

Payroll Deductions Payable represent amounts owing to the CRA at year end which had not
been paid.

Note 30:

Alpha Fund is a new Fund set up in 2014. Monies are reserved for this evangelism program.

Note 31:

The Asset Fund is the balance St. Thomas has available after covering all other Fund
balances. Essentially it is the total of the balances in the CTF assets.

Note 32:

During 2012, this new Fund was set up to preserve offerings and fundraising incomes earned
for the St. Thomas youth planned trip to Nicaragua in 2014. The group has renamed itself
the "Jumpin' Spirits."

Note 33:

The Open Table Fund has just completed its fifth year of ministry. Details are available in
the Balance Sheet Funds - Details form.
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PROPOSED 2015 BUDGET REPORT
This section of the Vestry financial report deals with the proposed 2015 Budget. As per
Diocesan CBR requirement, the Budget will be discussed and voted on at the annual Vestry
meeting on February 22nd. Corporation members and Parish Council members have voted in
favour of approving this budget.
The 2015 Budget Committee had the objective of developing and delivering a realistic and
achievable budget on behalf of St. Thomas. The members this year consisted of:
•
Robin Tilgner – People’s Warden
•
Pat McNally – Rector’s Warden
•
John Smith – Parish Auditor and Financial Advisor
•
Ryan Dallaway – Synod Representative
•
and myself, in the position of Budget Chairperson.
The Budget Committee was not able to derive a balanced budget for 2015. Corporation
members provided guiding principles and suggestions which greatly assisted the Budget
Committee. Budget Committee members brought essential knowledge and other talents that
enhanced each budget meeting. This included knowledge of St. Thomas’ ministries history,
financial comparisons and historical information and trends, and independent viewpoints. The
combination of these talents allowed the Committee to make its decisions in a well-informed
environment.
St. Thomas had a budgeted deficit for 2014 of $1,989 and the year ended with a deficit of
$7,021. The reasons for this variance were provided in the prior section of this yearend financial
report. The 2015 Budget, as proposed, indicates a deficit of $4,160 for the year.
What caused the deficit position for 2015? Obviously many of the factors that affected the 2013
and 2014 budgets continue to impact St. Thomas in 2015. In a nutshell, Operating Incomes
have declined or flattened out over the last few years while Operating Expenses continue to rise.
For the 2015 Budget:
Operating Incomes
•
Total General Fund Incomes are budgeted to be 2.0% higher than the amounts received
in 2014.
•
Total Offerings are budgeted at 3.2% higher than the 2014 amounts received. The
Budget Committee believes that this is achievable based on the plan to run a
Stewardship program in 2015. Also, the Committee believes that overall Offerings will
increase when the GIFT program ends.
•
Investment Income will be 7.0% higher due to higher dividends declared by the Diocese.
•
Fundraising Incomes, which reached their highest level ever in 2014, are budgeted at
6.2% higher due to plans to expand this ministry in 2015.
•
Rental Incomes will decline 14% in 2015 due to fewer renters of the Church facilities.
Operating Expenditures
•
Diocesan Commitments will increase 3.6% or by $4,458. This includes a $2,500
Diocesan Support Grant, again offered to St. Thomas in 2015 to help offset our projected
deficit.
•
Staff Costs overall will decline 10% in 2015.
•
Utilities and Property Costs are budgeted to be 4.9% higher than what was paid in 2014.
This is because the Church now has to include annual furnace and A/C maintenance
costs to protect the new units installed during the last four years. Also, Elevator
inspection and maintenance costs continue to rise.
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•

•

Parish Programs will be 5.0% lower than 2014 spending and Outreach and Refugee
ministries will be fundraised in 2015 so no allocation was made to these ministries at this
time. This could change if the St. Thomas financial situation changes for the better.
Overall the Total Operating Expenditures will be 0.5% higher than we incurred in 2014.

For your information the proposed budget does not include any funds received from the GIFT
program. These funds are “restricted” for use only within the GIFT Fund mandate. Additionally,
there are no projects budgeted at this time and any project that is proposed in 2015 will have to
be 100% funded before approval and implementation.
Lastly the Budget Committee did not include any incremental funding representing a new renter
because it is uncertain when we could achieve this.
The proposed 2015 Budget deficit is the best position the Budget Committee believes is
achievable based on the information available to it.
We knew going into the process that it would be a tough challenge to produce a balanced
budget because so many economic factors had to be dealt with. I am proud and thankful for the
effort and creativity put forth by the Budget Committee members and particularly for the advice,
suggestions and oversight by Corporation members.
I provide monthly financial status reports to Corporation and Parish Council members and will be
monitoring the deficit position closely throughout 2015. Parishioners are welcome to request
any information about Church finances at any time in the year, not just at Vestry time. If you are
so inclined please contact me directly or through the Church office.
The last thing I wish to say is to invite you to carefully read and understand the new “Narrative
Budget” developed by St. Thomas. The 2015 Budget I have included in this report is the
traditional “Line Item” budget and is formulated according to generally accepted accounting
standards. As such, you really have to be an accountant, I believe, to get a true picture all the
good that St. Thomas is doing for our parishioners, and in our community, the City and country
and internationally. For example, simply reading the line item budget you would see $0
budgeted for Outreach and Mission, including Refugee. But this is misleading because St.
Thomas contributes in so many other ways to this ministry. The Narrative Budget will provide
you with information about our ministries far beyond what the line item budget could ever do.
Please read it and let it guide you in your own offerings of treasures, talent and time to St.
Thomas.
If you have any questions or feedback to offer I would be pleased to receive them.
Respectfully submitted on behalf of the St. Thomas 2015 Budget Committee.

Bob McCaig
Certified Management Accountant
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St. Thomas Anglican Church
High Level Consolidated Income Statement
Proposed 2015 Budget
2014 - Budget

GENERAL FUND INCOMES
Offerings/Bequests
Investment Income
Fundraising Income
Other Assessed Income
Net Assessed Income
Non-Assessed Income
Total Income Before Transfers
Transfers to Other Funds
TOTAL GENERAL FUND INCOMES
GENERAL FUND EXPENSES
Diocesan Commitments
Staff
Office/Computer Supplies
Utilities
Church Property
Parish Outreach
Parish Programs
Other Expenses
Total Expenses Before Transfers
Transfers to Other Funds
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES

$

$
$

$

$
$

2014 - Actual

2015 - Budget

156,566 $
2,338
16,420
2,110
2,368
2,500
182,302 $
(237)
182,065 $

144,635 $
2,172
18,353
4,438
6,331
4,021
179,950 $
(633)
179,317 $

149,254
2,324
19,500
3,050
5,450
3,860
183,438
(545)
182,893

125,423
35,291
4,302
8,408
5,281
2,444
3,100
184,249
184,249

125,245
36,198
4,098
8,782
5,401
973
2,379
3,226
186,302
186,302

129,703
32,447
4,011
8,938
5,944
2,260
3,750
187,053
187,053

$

$
$

$

$
$

GENERAL FUND SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

$

(2,184) $

FLOWTHROUGH & OTHER FUND ITEMS (NET)

$

195

$

(36) $

CONSOLIDATED SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

$

(1,989) $

(7,021) $

58

(6,985) $

(4,160)
(4,160)

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Proposed Budget for 2015
2014 - Budget

GENERAL FUND INCOMES
OFFERINGS/BEQUESTS Note 2
Bequests Offering
Christmas Offering
Easter Offering
Initial Offering
Open Offering
Other Offerings Note 3
PAR & Regular Envelope Offering
Rector's Discretionary Fund Note 4
Refugee Offering
Thanksgiving Offering
Worship & Liturgy Offering
Subtotal Offerings/Bequests
INVESTMENT INCOME
CTF - Bequest #2587 Interest Note 5
CTF - Bequest #2658 Interest Note 6
CTF - Rectory #4040 Interest Note 7
GIC Interest - General Fund Note 8
Subtotal Investment Income
FUNDRAISING INCOME
Garden Plant Sales
Grocery Certificates Note 9
Parish Fundraising (Net) Note 10
Subtotal Fundraising Income
OTHER ASSESSED INCOME
Other Expenses Recovered Note 11
Other Miscellaneous Note 12
Peoples' Pulpit Ads
Wedding/Funeral/Reception
Subtotal Other Assessed Income
NET ASSESSED INCOME
Facilities Cost Recovery

$

$
$

$
$

$
$

2014 - Actual

4,600
2,500
150
4,300
500
143,016
1,400
100
156,566

$

2,113
225
2,338

$

420
6,000
10,000
16,420

$

$
$

$
$

$

100
560
450
1,000
2,110

$

2,368

2015 - Budget

3,765
1,665
108
3,318
134,404
190
995
190
144,635

$

2,113
59
2,172

$

476
6,000
11,877
18,353

$

$
$

$

4,300
1,900
110
3,500
138,124
1,130
190
149,254
2,324
2,324
500
6,000
13,000
19,500

$

$

48
1,202
288
2,900
4,438

$

50
1,200
300
1,500
3,050

$

6,331

$

5,450

$

2,500
2,500

$

1,521
2,500
4,021

$

1,360
2,500
3,860

$

182,302

$

179,950

$

183,438

NON-ASSESSED INCOME
Miscellaneous Non-Assessed Income Note 13

Diocesan Support Grant Note 14
Subtotal Non-Assessed Income
TOTAL INCOMES BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
Contingency Fund (10% Recovery) Note 15
Subtotal Transfers to Other Funds
TOTAL GENERAL FUND INCOMES

$
$
$

59

(237) $
(237) $
182,065

$

(633) $
(633) $
179,317

$

(545)
(545)
182,893

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Proposed Budget for 2015
2014 - Budget

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES
DIOCESAN COMMITMENTS
ECOPS Note 16
Fair Share Note 17
Insurance
Subtotal Diocesan Commitments
STAFF
Caretaker
Employer Share of CPP/EI
Organist
Replacement Priests
Secretary
Treasurer/Bookkeeper
Youth Ministry Support
Subtotal Staff
OFFICE/COMPUTER SUPPLIES
Office & Computer Equipment
Supplies, Postage, Bulletin
Photocopy Services
Subtotal Office/Computer Supplies
UTILITIES
Gas
Hydro
Internet/Email
Security System
Telephone
Water
Subtotal Utilities
CHURCH PROPERTY
Cleaner's Supplies
Elevator
Furnace & A/C Maintenance Plans
Normal Maintenance & Repair
Piano Tuning
Snow Removal & Grass Cutting
Subtotal Church Property
PARISH OUTREACH
Outreach
Refugee
Subtotal Parish Outreach

$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$
$

60

2014 - Actual

91,097
29,966
4,360
125,423

$

4,683
424
8,004
576
20,104
1,500
35,291

$

250
1,200
2,852
4,302

$

2,672
2,251
793
343
1,577
772
8,408

$

400
681
1,200
3,000
5,281

$

-

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

2015 - Budget

91,093
29,966
4,186
125,245

$

3,164
471
8,004
2,259
20,800
1,500
36,198

$

260
856
2,982
4,098

$

3,012
2,503
785
224
1,541
717
8,782

$

346
701
814
593
270
2,677
5,401

$

973
973

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

94,689
30,765
4,249
129,703
5,794
440
8,149
1,053
15,511
1,500
32,447
125
850
3,036
4,011
3,065
2,547
799
228
1,569
730
8,938
300
714
1,022
800
270
2,838
5,944
-

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Proposed Budget for 2015
2014 - Budget

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES (Continued)
PARISH PROGRAMS
Adult Education
God's Garden (Church School)
Music - Children's Choir
Music - Cornerstone
Music - Licences
Music - Senior Choir
Parish Picnic
Pastoral Care
Reception/Catering
Stewardship
Worship & Liturgy
Jumpin' Spirits Group
Subtotal Parish Programs

500
750
100
369
100
150
125
100
250
2,444

$

$

$

500
600
530
100
20
300
200
400
150
300
3,100

$

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES

$

GENERAL FUND SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

$

OTHER EXPENSES
Advertising
Altar Guild Supplies
Bank Charges
Communications
Counter's Expense
Fellowship & Hospitality
Kitchen Committee
Miscellaneous Expense
Peoples' Pulpit
Rector Discretionary Expense
Synod
Subtotal Other Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES BEFORE TRANSFERS

$

2014 - Actual

$
$

61

2015 - Budget

160
774
360
22
254
809
2,379

$

$

$

728
300
496
251
411
147
482
131
280
3,226

$

1,000
300
500
250
20
400
150
850
280
3,750

184,249

$

186,302

$

187,053

184,249

$

186,302

$

187,053

$

(2,184) $

$

(6,985) $

200
750
360
25
125
250
150
400
2,260

(4,160)

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Proposed Budget for 2015
2014 - Budget

2014 - Actual

2015 - Budget

FLOWTHROUGH & OTHER FUND ITEMS

OTHER OFFERINGS Note 18
Cemetery Fund Offering
Contingency Fund Offering Note 19
Food Bank Offering
GIFT Fund Offering (50% to Parish) Note 20
Improvement Fund Offering Note 21
Jumpin' Spirits Fund Offering
Memorial Fund Offering
Open Table Fund Offering
PWRDF Offering
PWRDF Special Appeal Offering
Subtotal Other Offerings
OTHER EXPENSES
Open Table Fund Expenses
Memorial Fund Expenses
Subtotal Other Expenses
PROJECT EXPENSES Note 22
Central Vacuum Rebuild
Church Hall Floor Cleaning & Waxing
Church Hall Tables
Concrete Steps Rebuild
Donation to Bruyere Shelter Foundation
Exterior Banner
Full Page Colour Advertising - 1 Time
Laminate Prayer Cards
Lock System - Carleton-Cathcart Doors
Outreach Nicaragua Trip
Office Computer
Sanctuary Projector System
Subtotal Project Expenses
OTHER INCOMES
HST Recovered Note 23
Open Table GIC Interest
Transfer in from Contingency Fund Note 24
Transfer in from Gift Fund Note 24
Transfer in from Improvement Fund Note 24

$

60 $
17,000
-

$

17,060

$
$
$

220
10
10,000
500
4,200
3,600
18,530

- $
- $

3,338 $
3,338 $

3,300
3,300

- $
-

404 $
900
2,000
670
151
8,563
775
13,463 $

-

3,373 $
93
1,179
5,843
1,051
5,563
17,102 $

2,282
235
2,517

-

$

- $

$

-

$

195
195 $

Transfer in from Jumpin' Spirits Fund Note 24

Transfer in from Memorial Fund Note 24
Transfer in from Open Table Fund Note 24
Subtotal Other Incomes

$

220 $
14,000
79
315
4,128
3,568
200
22,510 $

62

$

-

St. Thomas Anglican Church
Detailed Proposed Budget for 2015
2014 - Budget

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS Note 25
Transfer to Cemetery Fund
Transfer to Contingency Fund
Transfer to Food Bank
Transfer to GIFT Fund
Transfer to Improvement Fund
Transfer to Jumpin' Spirits Fund
Transfer to Memorial Fund
Transfer to Open Table Fund - Operations
Transfer to Open Table Fund - GIC Interest
Transfer to PWRDF
Transfer to Rector's Contingency Fund
HST Recovery Credited to Assets/Funds
Subtotal Transfers to Other Funds
CONSOLIDATED SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

$

2014 - Actual

2015 - Budget

$

60 $
17,000
17,060 $

220 $
14,000
79
315
790
93
3,768
209
3,373
22,847 $

220
10
10,000
500
900
235
3,600
2,282
17,747

$

(1,989) $

(7,021) $

(4,160)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW REPORT

Year 2014
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Vestry Motions
Motion No. 1. It is moved that the Agenda for Vestry for 2015 be accepted as presented (or amended)
Moved: Pat McNally
Seconded: Bob McCaig

Motion No. 2. It is moved that the minutes of Vestry 2014 be accepted as presented (or amended)
Moved: Elizabeth Norris
Seconded: Pat McNally

Motion No. 3. It is moved that the reports to Vestry 2015 be accepted as presented.
Moved: Robin Tilgner
Seconded: Pat McNally

Motion No. 4. It is moved that the 2015 Budget be accepted as presented (or amended)
Moved: Pat McNally
Seconded: Robin Tilgner

Motion No. 5. It is moved that Brad Faulkner, Pat Dalphy, Michael Whalen and Gwelda O’Shaughnessy,
serve in the capacity of Cemetery Board for 2015-2016.
Moved: Rev Jane McCaig
Seconded: Pat McNally

Motion No. 6: It is moved that a committee of six comprised of members of Parish Council and the
congregation undertake a study of the possible renewal of the St. Thomas worship space. The study would
examine the best use of space, flooring and seating; would investigate possible sources of funding, and
would provide regular updates to Parish Council and the congregation.
Moved by Robin Tilgner
Seconded by Pat McNally
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